Pecyn Dogfennau
P N
Cyngor Sir Gar

Carmarthenshire
County Council

sirgar.llyw.cymru

carmarthenshire.gov.wales

DYDD IAU, 13 GORFFENNAF 2023

AT: HOLL AELODAU Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU LLE,
CYNALIADWYEDD A NEWID HINSAWDD

YR WYF DRWY HYN YN EICH GALW | FYNYCHU CYFARFOD OR
PWYLLGOR CRAFFU LLE, CYNALIADWYEDD A NEWID HINSAWDD
A GYNHELIR YN SIAMBR, NEUADD Y SIR, CAERFYRDDIN,
SA31 1JP AC O BELL AM 2,00 YP, DYDD GWENER,
21 GORFFENNAF, 2023 ER MWYN CYFLAWNI'R MATERION A
AMLINELLIR AR YR AGENDA SYDD YNGHLWM.

Wendy Walters

PRIF WEITHREDWR

Swyddog Democrataidd: Janine Owen
Ffon (llinell uniongyrchol): 01267 224030
E-Bost: JanineOwen@sirgar.gov.uk

Cyfarfod amli-leoliad yw hwn. Gall aelodau’r pwyllgor fynychu’n bersonol yn'y
lleoliad a nodir uchod neu o bell drwy’r ddolen Zoom a ddarperir ar wahan.

Gellir gwylio’r cyfarfod ar wefan y cyngor drwy'r ddolen canlynol:-

https://carmarthenshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home

Wendy Walters Prif Weithredwr, Chief Executive,
Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP
County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP


https://carmarthenshire.public-i.tv/core/portal/home

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU LLE, CYNALIADWYEDD A NEWID HINSAWDD
13 AELODAU

GRWP PLAID CYMRU - 6 Aelodau

Cyng. Karen Davies (Is-Gadeirydd)
Cyng. Arwel Davies (Aelod y Pwyllgor)
Cyng. Colin Evans (Aelod y Pwyligor)
Cyng. Neil Lewis (Aelod y Pwyllgor)
Cyng. Dorian Phillips (Aelod y Pwyllgor)
Cyng. Gareth Thomas (Aelod y Pwyllgor)

GRWP LLAFUR - 5 Aelodau

Cyng. Peter Cooper (Aelod y Pwyllgor)

Cyng. Shelly Godfrey-Coles (Aelod y Pwyllgor)
Cyng. Tina Higgins (Aelod y Pwyllgor)

Cyng. John James (Aelod y Pwyllgor)

Cyng. Kevin Madge (Cadeirydd)

GRWP ANNIBYNNOL - 2 Aelodau

Cyng.Sue Allen (Aelod y Pwyllgor)
Lle Gwag

carmarthenshire.gov.wales



AGENDA

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB

2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL GAN GYNNWYS
UNRHYW CHWIPIAU PLEIDIAU A RODDIR MEWN YMATEB |
UNRHYW EITEM AR YR AGENDA.

3. CWESTIYNAU GAN Y CYHOEDD (NID OEDD DIM WEDI DOD | LAW)

4. ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU LLE, 5-30
CYNALIADWYEDD A NEWID YR HINSAWDD 2022/23

5. BLAENRAGLEN WAITH AR GYFER 2023/24 31-36

6. ADRODDIAD TERFYNOL GRWP GORCHWYL A GORFFEN 37-72

ADOLYGIAD O REOLI TIPIO ANGHYFREITHLON YN SIR
GAERFYRDDIN

7. DIWEDDARIAD AR GYFER YSTYRIED GORCHYMYN DIOGELU 73-78
MANNAU AGORED CYHOEDDUS YCHWANEGOL AR GYFER
GORCHMYNION CWN SIR GAERFYRDDIN

8. ADOLYGIAD O BARCIO AM DDIM 79 -98
9. EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL 99 - 104
10. LLOFNODI YN GONOD CYWIR COFNODION Y CYFARFOD A 105-108

GYNHALIWYD AR 15 MAI 2023

carmarthenshire.gov.wales



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Eitem Rhif 4

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU
LLE, CYNALIADWYEDD A NEWID YR HINSAWDD

21 GORFFENNAF 2023

ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU
LLE, CYNALIADWYEDD A NEWID YR HINSAWDD 2022/23

Ystyried y materion canlynol a chyflwyno sylwadau arnynt:

Bod yr aelodau yn ystyried ac yn cymeradwyo adroddiad blynyddol y Pwyllgor Craffu Lle,
Cynaliadwyedd a Newid yr Hinsawdd ar gyfer blwyddyn y cyngor 2022/23.

Y Rhesymau:

Mae’n ofynnol yn 6l Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor fod y pwyllgorau craffu’n adrodd yn flynyddol ar
eu gwaith.

CABINET MEMBER PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Amherthnasol

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: Swyddi: Rhifau Ffén / Cyfeiriadau E-
Prif Weithredwr bost:

Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth:
Linda Rees-Jones Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a’r Gyfraith | 01267 224010
[jones@sirgar.gov.uk

Awdur yr adroddiad: Swyddog Gwasanaethau 01267 224030
Janine Owen Democrataidd JanineOwen@sirgar.gov.uk

PN
Cyngor Sir Gar ’
Carmarthenshire
County Council

Tudalen 5



mailto:lrjones@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:JanineOwen@sirgar.gov.uk

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

PLACE, SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE CHANGE
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

21ST JULY 2023

PLACE, SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE CHANGE
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE -
ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23

The attached report has been prepared in order to comply with Article 6.2 of the County
Council’'s Constitution which states that a scrutiny committee must:

“Prepare an annual report giving an account of the Committee’s activities over the previous
year.”

The report provides an overview of the workings of the Environmental and Public Protection
Scrutiny Committee during the 2022/23 municipal year.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED ? YES

PN
Cyngor Sir Gar ’
Carmarthenshire
County Council

Tudalen 6




IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this
report :

Signed: Linda Rees-Jones Head of Administration & Law

Policy, Crime | Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
& Disorder Management | Implications Assets
and Issues

Equalities

YES YES NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities — In line with requirements of the County Council’s
Constitution.

2. Legal — In line with requirements of the County Council’s Constitution.

CONSULTATIONS

| confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed below

Signed: Linda Rees-Jones Head of Administration & Law

1.Local Member(s) - N/A

2.Community / Town Council — N/A

3.Relevant Partners - N/A

4.Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations

CABINET MEMBER PORTFOLIO N/A
HOLDERS AWARE/CONSULTED

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:
THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW:-

Title of Document File Ref | Locations that the papers are available for public inspection
No.

Place, Sustainability and Online https://democratiaeth.sirgar.llyw.cymru/ieListMeetings.aspx?

Climate Change Scrutiny Committeeld=403

Committee Reports and

Minutes

Tudalen 7

PN
Cyngor Sir Gar ’
Carmarthenshire
County Council


https://democratiaeth.sirgar.llyw.cymru/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=403
https://democratiaeth.sirgar.llyw.cymru/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=403

Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Place, Sustainability and

Climate Change
Scrutiny Committee

Annual Report

2022 - 2023

carmarthenshire.gov.uk
PN
Cyngor Sir Gé)
Carmarthenshire
County Council



CONTENTS

Chairs Foreword........ ..., 2
L [0 yo Yo (¥ o7 (o] o NUU TSP PRTORR 3
2. Overview of the work of the Committee in 2022/23 ...........coooeiiiiiiiiiiiie 4
2.1 Management of MEEtINGS ........oooiiiiiiiiiiii e 4
2.2 The Role of the Cabinet Member............cooovviiiiiiiiiiee e, 4
2.3 The Forward Work Plan ... 5
2.4 The Gateway Framework and reports circulated under a separate cover-......6
2.5 Performance MONITOMNG ......coouiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e 7
2.6 Revenue and Capital BUdgets ..........ccooeiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeee e 8
2.7 Pre-Decision Scrutiny RePOIS.........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e 9
2.8 Additional Reports and Update Reports ..........ooooeveviiiiiiiiiiiiieee e 12
2.9 REFEITAIS ... e 16
2.10 Public Engagement and Scrutiny Topic Suggestions ..........ccccccceeeeeiiiiniinnnes 16
3.  Scrutiny Committee ACHIVILY .......ooiiiiiii 17
4. ChAllENGES ...ttt e e e e e e e e e 19
5. Committee’s FUtUre WOrK .........ooooiiiiie e 19
6. Support for the Scrutiny FUNCHION ........oovviiiii e 20
7. Committee Member AtendancCe ... 21

Cyngor Sir Gar ® Carmarthenshire County Council Tudalen 10

1



Chair’s Foreword

| am pleased to present the first Annual Report of the Place, Sustainability and Climate
Change Scrutiny Committee of this election period. This report
demonstrates the variety of work that this scrutiny committee has
undertaken during the period between May 2022 to April 2023.

Whilst, the local elections in May 2022 saw a change in Committee
membership, new members embraced the challenge and showed their
enthusiasm and passion right from the start. In addition to the Member
Development Programme, the Committee factored into its Forward Work
Plan focussed development sessions in order to enhance the knowledge
and understanding of specific subjects.

All Scrutiny Members managed the remote working well and adapted to the multi-location
meetings with ease. The Committee successfully developed its forward work plan, and
aligned it so that key issues would come in front of our Committee prior to Cabinet making
the decision. The Committee achieved this by questioning and debating the content of
reports and recommendations on pertinent and important items for the benefit of the
Communities in Carmarthenshire.

| would like to express my appreciation to the Cabinet Members within this Committee’s
remit for presenting the Committee with detailed technical and operational information.
Also, my appreciation goes out to local councils and the residents of Carmarthenshire who
have actively got involved with this Committee by writing to us and joining meetings online.

Once again, | wish to thank my Vice Chair, Councillor Karen Davies for her invaluable
support and friendship throughout the year.

On a final note, my sincere thanks to all the Committee Members for your attendance,
professionalism and for providing excellent scrutiny for and on behalf of our communities.

Councillor John James
Chair of Place, Sustainability and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee 2022/2023

Cyngor Sir Gar ® Carmarthenshire County Council Tudalen 11 2



1. Introduction

The scrutiny function is a key element of the County Council's governance arrangements and
decision-making process. Although not a decision-making body, Scrutiny is at its most
effective when it grasps the potential to influence and inform decisions made by both the
Council and partner bodies affecting the County.

Article 6.2 of the Council’s Constitution requires all scrutiny committees to “prepare an annual
report giving an account of the Committees activities over the previous year.”

This report provides an overview of the work of the Place, Sustainability and Climate Change
Scrutiny Committee during the reduced six-month committee cycle for 2022/23 municipal
year. It aims to highlight the work of the Committee and reflect on the achievements
identifying what worked well and where improvements could be made. This analysis is
instrumental in developing scrutiny. In addition, this report may aid to facilitate discussions
on items which could be identified for inclusion within future work programmes.

The Committee is chaired by the Councillor John James and is made up of 13 Elected
Members, one Independent Group place has been vacant for the duration of 2022/23.
Support is provided to the Committee by the Democratic Services Team and other Council
officers as and when required.

The Committee helps deliver a number of key outcome measures within the Council’s
Corporate Strategy 2018-23:

e Wellbeing objective 5 —
Create more jobs and growth throughout the County.

¢ Wellbeing objective 7 —
Live Well-Help people live healthy lives.

e Wellbeing objective 8 -
Support Community cohesion, resilience and safety.

e Wellbeing objective 9 —
Live Well/Age Well — Support good connections with friends, family and safer
communities.

e Wellbeing objective 10 —
Healthy and Safety Environment — Look after the environment now and in the future.

e Wellbeing objective 11 —
Healthy and Safe Environment — Improve the highway and transport infrastructure
and connectivity.

e Wellbeing objective 13 —
Better Governance and use of Resources.

Some of the measures and actions within Wellbeing objective 12 overlap with Community
Scrutiny, however the necessary information was also be provided to this Committee.

Cyngor Sir Gar ® Carmarthenshire County Council Tudalen 12 3



2. Overview of the work of the Committee in 2022/23

2.1 Management of Meetings

The Scrutiny Committee held 7 meetings during the 2022/23 municipal year in
accordance with the Committee’s Forward Work Programme.

In accordance with the provisions for section 47 of the Local Government and Elections
(Wales) Act 2021 all meetings were held as a multi-location which provided an option
to attend virtually via the platform Zoom or in-person. All members embraced the new
way of working carried out their scrutiny role with confidence and professionalism
either remotely or in person.

2.2 The Role of the Cabinet Member

The Council, at its meeting held on the 22" October, 2020 agreed a number of
changes to its Scrutiny Procedure Rules and remits. The principal change was that the
Cabinet Members would be expected to attend, present the reports placed on the
Forward Work Programme by the Committee and answer questions raised by Scrutiny
Members thus holding the Cabinet to account. Relevant Officers were called upon in
order to provide additional information on operational issues.

In addition, Council at its meeting on 28th September, 2022 approved the
recommendations of the Constitutional Review Working Group to amend the Scrutiny
remits with each Scrutiny Committee being responsible for the overview and scrutiny
of specific Cabinet Portfolios and their respective services.

At the same time the scrutiny name changed was adopted from Environmental and
Public Protection to Place, Sustainability and Climate Change and the following
Cabinet Portfolios and their respective service areas:-:

e Transport, Waste and Infrastructure Services
e Climate Change, Decarbonisation and Sustainability

In addition, the Cabinet Member for Resources attended meetings to present finance
related reports including the budget monitoring reports, the Cabinet Member for Rural
Affairs and Planning Policy and the Cabinet Member for Social Care and Health
attended to present the relevant actions within the Corporate Performance Monitoring
reports relevant to their remit.

Cyngor Sir Gar ® Carmarthenshire County Council Tudalen 13 4


https://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=389
https://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=388

2.3 The Forward Work Plan

The Place, Sustainability and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee developed its
Forward Work Plan with matters that fall within remit which covers:-

Waste and Environmental Services including:-
e Refuse Collection,

e Street Cleaning,

e Grounds Maintenance,

¢ Building Cleaning (including Schools, where relevant),
e Public Toilets

o Biodiversity;

e Zero Carbon.

Transport and Streetscene including:-
e Highways, Street Lighting, Bridges,
e Traffic Management,

e Parking Services,

e Cycle paths and Rights of Way;

Environmental Enforcement including:-
e Litter, Dog Fouling;

¢ Abandoned Vehicles efc;

e Planning Enforcement;

e Trading Standards;

e Public Health Pest Control

Community Safety issues including:-

e Substance Misuse
e Crime and Disorder Referrals (to include a power to make a report or
recommendations to the County Council and/or the Council’s Cabinet);

In September 2022, the Committee at its annual Forward Work Plan development
session developed its own Forward Work Plan (FWP) by identifying pre-decision reports
from the Cabinet Forward Work Plan and prioritising agenda items for consideration
during the next municipal year.

In addition to the standard items such as performance and budget monitoring reports
as well as action plans and monitoring reports the Committee identified pre-decision
reports from the Cabinet’s Forward Work Programme 2022/23.

Whilst the Committee has the option to co-opt non-voting employees, officers or
members of Responsible Authorities or co-operating persons or bodies in respect of its
crime and disorder functions, [subject to the provisions of the Crime and Disorder
(Overview and Scrutiny) Regulations 2009] did not do so during the 2022/23 municipal
year.

Cyngor Sir Gar ® Carmarthenshire County Council Tudalen 14 5



2.4 The Gateway Framework and reports circulated under a separate cover (e-mail)

The Committee at its Forward Work Plan development session utilised the Gateway
Framework method in order to manage the number of reports being presented at each
meeting. Considering the number of reports for consideration enables the Committee
to undertake a quality scrutiny process.

The Committee, following the identification of the reports for the Forward Work Plan
further shaped their programme by taking each subject/report through the Gateway
Framework.

In line with the Framework, Members agreed that 11 reports be circulated to members
by e-mail. Members scrutinised the reports as they would in a formal meeting and
forward any queries and/or concerns to the Scrutiny Support officer to arrange a
response. Any queries raised together with responses were included within the
Forthcoming ltems report.

The Committee regularly reviewed its Forward Work Plan and as a flexible working
document on occasion reports rearranged to manage the Scrutiny process accordingly.

Scrutiny programme gateways

Does this issue impact on a high number

of people in Carmarthenshire ? N

Is this issue high value, high impact or high risk ? NO

B REJECT/FAIL

Does this issue related to council
corporate objectives? Is its strategic and

NO

Can scrutiny add value?
Could it be improved by scrutiny?

L

NO

YES
YES | Would scrutiny just be duplicating or NO

add unnecessary bureaucracy ?

Is the council able to review this area which NO
would

!

Consider low or med priority?

Is the issue of concern to the council’s key NO
ES |partners?

=<

Does scrutiny have the capacity to undertake an NO
effective piece of work?

INCLUDE IN SCRUTINY PROGRAMME

Cyngor Sir Gar ® Carmarthenshire County Council Tudalen 15 6



2.5 Performance Monitoring
Divisional Business Plans (within the remit of this Scrutiny Committee) -

A series of Divisional Business Plans were presented by the respective Cabinet
Members to Committee Members in April 2023. The Scrutiny Committee considered
the strategic actions and measures that the services within each Division had planned
to take forward, in order for the Council to make progress against its Well-being
Objectives, thematic priorities and service priorities.

The following Divisional Business plans were received by the Committee:-

e Highways and Transportation Division

Waste and Environmental Division

Property Design and Maintenance Division

Place and Sustainability Division

Service Improvement and Transformation Division

Carmarthenshire Council Annual Report 2021/22 — In November, 2022 the Committee
was presented with a report which contained the Council’s 15 Well Being Objectives
and assessed the progress and adaptations made during 2021/22. Members focussed
on the following sections within the document relevant to the Committee’s remit:

o Well-being Objective 10: Look after the environment now and for the future

¢ Well-being Objective 11: Improve the highway and transport infrastructure and
connectivity

Members raised pertinent questions in regard to the climate change, circular
economy and fleet management (electric).

The relevant Cabinet member supported by Officers provided Scrutiny Members with
detailed responses.

2020/21 Performance Reports relevant to this Scrutiny - One of the principal roles of
a scrutiny committee is to monitor the performance of services and functions within its
remit. In October 2022, the Committee were afforded the opportunity to scrutinise the
performance report by e-mail. The report detailed the progress as at the end of
Quarter 1 of the deliverables linked to the Corporate Strategy and the Well-being
objectives. No queries were received. Quarter 2 report was considered at the meeting
in December 2022.

Carmarthenshire County Council - Corporate Strategy 2022-27 - The Committee
received the Corporate Strategy for 2022-27 at its meeting on 14th April, 2023 and
acknowledged that the Strategy had already been endorsed by full Council. This was
a cause for concern for Members of the Scrutiny Committee who proposed that future
Corporate Strategy’s be presented to Scrutiny Committee’s in a timelier manner in
order that members can properly scrutinise the contents of the Strategy before it has
been ratified by full Council.

Cyngor Sir Gar ® Carmarthenshire County Council Tudalen 16 7



Scrutiny Committee Actions Update — In October 2022 and May 2023, the Committee
received a report which included the progress updates in respect of the committee’s
requests and actions arising from Committee meetings for information.

2.6 Revenue and Capital Budgets

Budget Monitoring Reports — were circulated to Place, Sustainability and Climate
Change Scrutiny Committee members by e-mail in line with the Committee’s decision
to scrutinise outside of the Committees formal process.

The Committee, received quarterly reports on the departmental and corporate revenue
and capital budgets in

e October 2022 - in respect of the budgetary position as at 30" June 2022 and
¢ November 2022 - in respect of the budgetary position as at 315t August 2022
e January 2023 — in respect of the budgetary position as at 315t October 2022.

The reports enabled members to monitor the level of spend in each area and the
progress made in connection with any capital works.

Consultation - Revenue Budget Strategy 2023/24 to 2025/26 - In January 2023, the
Committee as a statutory consultee received the Revenue Budget Strategy 2023/24
to 2025/26 for consideration and comment. The report provided the Committee with
the current proposals for the Revenue Budget for 2022/23 together with the indicative
figures for the 2022/23 to 2024/25 financial years.

The Committee raised a number of queries and concerns in regard to the proposed
budgets on the following issues:

» Net Zero Targets

Fixed Penalty Notices — charges

Residents Parking Permit Admin Charges

The promotion of the Buy with Confident scheme
Household Waste Recycling Centres (HWRC)

Property Maintenance — efficiency measures

vV V VYV VvV V V

School Transport - Additional Needs Personal Travel Budgets
» Traffic Management - Road Safety innovation

The queries were responded to by the respective Cabinet Members supported by
Officers. In addition, during the consideration of the saving proposals, the Committee
formally proposed that in regard to the introduction of parking charges at the 9 carparks
which were currently free to park, be reviewed by the Cabinet Member on a case-by-
case basis.

Cyngor Sir Gar ® Carmarthenshire County Council Tudalen 17 8



Outcome:

The comments, concerns and recommendations raised by the Committee helped to
shape the Revenue budget strategy for 2023/24 — 2024/25 which was considered at
full Council on 1st March 2023.

In response to the Committee’s proposal, the Cabinet Member for Waste, Transport
and Infrastructure Services would be undertaking a review and submit a further
report for Committee’s consideration.

2.7 Pre-Decision Scrutiny Reports

2.7.1 Public Space Protection Order (Enhancement on dog related controls) —
November 2022

The Committee considered a report on the additional Public Space Protection Order
(PSPO) for Carmarthenshire Dog Orders, which included the results of a recent
engagement survey in relation to the potential to introduce supplementary dog controls
by means of an additional PSPO, where evidence supports the need for additional

orders.

Committee Members were enthusiastic about this subject as it impacted all
communities within Carmarthenshire. Following a lengthy discussion in respect of the
possibility of banning dogs from sports pitches, the Committee resolved to recommend
to Cabinet that an additional Public Space Protection Order be introduced to band
dogs from defined sports fields located within the County.

Outcome

The Cabinet Member for Climate Change, Decarbonisation and Sustainability agreed
to undertake further work exploring the possibility and legal matters in respect of the
Committee’s proposal. A further report would be provided upon completion.

Cyngor Sir Gar ® Carmarthenshire County Council Tudalen 18 9



2.7.2 Waste Strategy Update —December 2022

The Committee at its request received an update report in regard to the Waste Strategy
2021-2025, presented by the Cabinet Member for Waste,

Transport and Infrastructure Services. The report provided psmsmmsmmrrmms
Members with a summary of the current waste management
policies that was required to improve operational and strategic
performance.

Members enthusiastic in their approach to improve the
management of waste in Carmarthenshire, raised a number of
queries which were responded to by the Cabinet Member
supported by Officers in relation to:- T

e Glass collection Service

e Absorbent Hygiene Products (AHP’s) and what was accepted as such
e Missed collections

e Concerns regarding the 3 weekly black bag collections

e Concerns regarding the potential increase in fly-tipping

Outcome

RESOLVED that the progress and delivery of the Waste Strategy update be received
and noted.

2.7.3 Highways Asset Management Plan (HAMP) Maintenance Manual —
January 2023,

The Committee was presented with a report requesting Members to consider and
comment on parts 4.5, 4.6 and 4.7 of the HAMP Maintenance Manual prior to adoption
by the Cabinet. The main concerns raised were in relation to the low priority of rural
roads status. In addition, queries were raised in regard to:-

¢ Landowners responsibilities
e Waterways — NRW and Council responsibilities
e Drainage pipes

The Cabinet Member supported by Officers responded to the concerns and provided
thorough explanations of the prioritised system of assessment, inspection and repair
and the responsibilities.

Outcome:

Unanimously resolved to recommend to Cabinet that Parts 4.5, 4.6 and 4.7 of the
Highways Asset Management Plan Maintenance Manual be adopted.

Cyngor Sir Gar ® Carmarthenshire County Council Tudalen 19 10



2.7.4 Roundabout Sponsorship Scheme — April 2023

The Committee considered a report on a proposed new Roundabout Sponsorship
Scheme which included information outlining how the scheme would work in practice
taking account of any potential legal issues.

Whilst Members welcomed the proposed scheme, a number of queries were raised
in connection with costings and prioritisation of businesses.

Outcome:

The Committee unanimously resolved to recommend to Cabinet that Roundabout
Sponsorship Scheme be endorsed.

2.7.5 Street Cleansing Strategic Management Plan 2023 — May 2023

In accordance with the Committee’s Forward Work Plan, the Street Cleansing
Strategic Management Plan 2023 was presented by the Cabinet Member for
Transport, Waste and Infrastructure Services. The report presented the way in which
the Council would review and improve its cleansing service delivery whilst meeting the
legislative requirements of the Environmental Protection Act 1990.

The Cabinet Member, supported by officers responded to queries in regard to the
following:-

e Communications in regard to litter bin receptacles identified for removal
e Public education and awareness
e Staffing costs in respect of the All-Wales Cleanliness Indicator rating

Outcome:

The Committee unanimously resolved to receive the Street Cleansing Strategic
Management Plan 2023

Cyngor Sir Gar ® Carmarthenshire County Council Tudalen 20 11




2.8 Additional Reports and Update Reports

2.8.1 Air Quality Update — November 2022

At the request of the Committee, an update report was presented to Scrutiny members
by the Cabinet Member for Climate Change, Decarbonisation and Sustainability The
update contained the work undertaken in respect of Air Quality in Carmarthenshire
which currently had three Air Quality Management Areas (AQMA) - Llandeilo,
Carmarthen and Llanelli. This update reported information in regard to the Nitrogen
Dioxide (NO2) monitoring across Carmarthenshire with results compared to previous
years.

During the consideration of the information contained within the report, Members
raised strong concerns in relation to the ongoing poor air quality at Rhosmaen Street,
Llandeilo and emphasised that the only solution to improve the poor air quality in
Llandeilo would be to develop a by-pass. It was proposed that an e-mail be sent to
the Deputy Minister for Climate Change on behalf of the Committee in support of the
Llandeilo by-pass.

Outcome:

The Committee unanimously resolved to send an e-mail from the Scrutiny
Committee to the Deputy Minister for Climate Change to convey the Committees
strong support for the development of the Llandeilo by-pass which would improve air
quality in and around Llandeilo.

The Chair on behalf of the Committee forwarded an e-mail to the Deputy Minister for
Climate Change- Lee Waters MS.

In response to the views expressed, the Cabinet Member received the following from
the Deputy Minister for Climate Change:-

“We are currently considering the range of views expressed by the public and
stakeholders with regards to Llandeilo at WelTAG Stage 2 in order to present
proposals that could secure consensus amongst key stakeholders and allow the work
to progress to WelTAG Stage 3.

To facilitate this consensus, Welsh Government officials will arrange a meeting with
Carmarthenshire Council officers to discuss proposals to progress to Stage 3.
Should agreement be reached between both organisations, development of short and
medium-term measures could progress this Winter and be delivered within 3 years.
The development of long-term measures could progress in parallel.”

In a further response:-

“We are currently considering the range of views expressed by the public and
stakeholders with regards to Llandeilo at WelTAG Stage 2 in order to present
proposals that could secure consensus amongst key stakeholders and allow the work
to progress to WelTAG Stage 3. To facilitate this consensus, Welsh Government
officials arranged a meeting with Carmarthenshire Council to discuss proposals to
progress to Stage 3 in December 2022 and provided further clarification of options to
the council in February 2023.”

Cyngor Sir Gar ® Carmarthenshire County Council Tudalen 21 12




2.8.2 Highway Drainage Design Guide for New Developments — November 2022 —
Scrutiny by E-mail

At the request of the Committee, a report which appended the Highway Drainage
Design Guide was circulated to Scrutiny Members by e-mail. The purpose of the report
was to provide supplementary detailed guidance for developers designing and
constructing surface water drainage systems and connecting surface water drainage
systems to existing highway drains.

No comments or queries were received in connection with the report.

2.8.3 Graffiti Policy — December 2022 — Scrutiny by E-mail

At the request of the Committee, a report which appended the Graffiti Policy was
circulated to members for scrutiny by e-mail. The Policy provided the current
procedures and guidelines that were being reviewed and the best practice that was
identified to ensure that a balanced approach to Graffiti Management was being taken.

No comments or queries were received in connection with the report.

2.8.4 Carmarthenshire County Council - Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure
Strategy— December 2022

Following the Cabinet approval of the proposal to adopt an Electric Vehicle Charging
Infrastructure Strategy for Carmarthenshire in December 2021, the Committee, ahead
of Cabinet consideration, received an update report. The following main points were
raised:-

» To encourage the use of electric vehicles in the fleet and electric car clubs
> To seek a better ‘time of use’ tariff — eg overnight charging

The Cabinet Member supported by Officers provided comprehensive responses.

Outcome:

The Committee unanimously resolved to recommend to Cabinet that the proposed
Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Strategy for the Council be adopted.

2.8.5 Carmarthenshire Sandbag Policy 2022 —January 2023 — Scrutiny by E-mail
The Committee requested to receive the Sandbag Policy which was circulated to the
Committee e-mail in January 2023. The policy provided with clear advice on when
sandbags will be deployed to manage flood risk.

No comments or queries were received in connection with the report.

Cyngor Sir Gar ® Carmarthenshire County Council Tudalen 22 13




2.8.6 Phosphate Levels in protected Riverine Special Areas of Conservation —
Update — February 2023

At the request of the Committee, a report was presented by the Cabinet member for
Rural Affairs & Planning Policy regarding the progress and work undertaken in
responding to the impacts of phosphate pollution in protected Special Areas of
Conservation.

Outcome:

The Committee unanimously resolved to receive the update report

2.8.7 Carmarthenshire Equestrian Strategy Update —January 2023

At the request of the Committee, a report on the Carmarthenshire Equestrian Strategy
Update was presented by the Cabinet Member for Transport, Waste and Infrastructure
Services

In acknowledging the vast network, Members raised concerns about the departments
underfunding and recognised that more investment was needed in this area to save
paths.

Outcome:

The Committee resolved to receive the Equestrian Strategy Update

2.8.8 WG Speed Limit Changes in Legislation (20MPH) —January 2023

The Committee having requested to include this topic onto its Forward Work Plan,
received an informative report in regard to the Welsh Government 20mph Speed Limit
Legislation.

The report, presented by the Cabinet Member for Transport, Waste and Infrastructure
Services, provided an update on legislative change being introduced by Welsh
Government in September 2023. The legislation would reduce the current 30mph
default speed limit on restricted (street lit) roads in residential areas to 20mph.

Members finding the information within the report valuable raised queries in connection
with:-
¢ Funding the change in legislation — eg signage, resources, Traffic Regulation
Orders
¢ Enforcement

Outcome:

The Committee resolved to receive the report

Cyngor Sir Gar ® Carmarthenshire County Council Tudalen 23 14



2.8.9 A Tree and Woodland Strategy for Carmarthenshire County Council
2023-2028 — February 2023

The Committee requested to include the Tree and Woodland Strategy onto its Forward
Work Plan as the strategy addressed the Authority’s responsibilities for managing trees
and woodlands as well as opportunities for new planting.

Committee Members raised pertinent queries in respect of the strategy which were
responded to in detail by the Cabinet Member supported by Officers.

Outcome:

The Committee resolved to receive the Tree and Woodland Strategy for
Carmarthenshire County Council 2023-28

2.8.10 Cwm Environmental Ltd 2022-23 Business Plan and
Half Year Progress Report -May 2023

In January, in accordance with the Committee’s Forward Work Plan, Members
received the Cwm Environmental Ltd 2022-23 Business Plan and Half Year Progress
Report —May 2023 by e-mail. However, at its meeting in February 2023, in response
to a request by a Committee member, the Committee resolved to consider the report
in a formal meeting by including onto the agenda in May 2023.

The report having contained some commercially sensitive information in relation to the
company’s business was exempt from the public and was considered in private.

The CWM Environmental Ltd Business Plan was for the three-year period 2022-23 to
2024-25 and has been produced to set out the company’s strategic objectives, its
service delivery objectives, the commercial risks that it faces together with its
anticipated financial performance. It also ensures that CWM'’s strategy is aligned with
and delivers upon Carmarthenshire’s waste agenda and wider objectives

The Progress report provides a mid-year update on performance and actions against
the business plan for the 2022-23 financial year

Member raised queries in relation to:

e Financial costs ;

e Compost and its pricing strategy;

e Electric vehicles in the fleet replacement program 2025-2030 — associated issues
and costs;

e Circular Economy;

e The Repair Workshop and Re-use Shop (ETO).

Queries were responded to by the Managing Director of Cwm Environmental Ltd
supported by Officers.

Outcome:

The Committee resolved to receive the Cwm Environmental Ltd 2022-23
Business Plan and Half Year Progress Report.

Cyngor Sir Gar ® Carmarthenshire County Council Tudalen 24 15




2.9 Referrals

The Committee did not receive any referrals in the 2022/23 municipal year.

2.10 Public Engagement and Scrutiny Topic Suggestions

Listening to and giving the public a voice is key to scrutiny’s effectiveness. It was
important to the Committee to grant the people of Carmarthenshire (and beyond) an
opportunity to shape the Forward Work Programme. The Communications department
provided active involvement through social media throughout the municipal year picking
up on various topics on the Scrutiny’s Forward Work Programme.

In addition, complying with Legislation regarding promoting public awareness at
Scrutiny, in April 2018, the Chairs and Vice Chairs of Scrutiny Forum agreed to send
correspondence to Town and Community Councils which would contain information to
encourage an increase in public attendance at Scrutiny Committees and also seek
suggestions for future topics for consideration. In response to this the Place,
Sustainability and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee received the following requests
from two Town and Community Council’s which was considered as part of the Scrutiny’s
Forward Work Programme development session in September 2022:-

1) Gors-las Community Council

Subject - The County Council Co-ordinating Action across the County to the issue of
Dog Fouling in Public Areas /Parks

Committee Decision
This matter and suggestions would be considered as part of the Public Space
Protection Order.

2) Gors-las Community Council

Subject — Review of the arrangements for play equipment safety inspections and
repairs by CCC

Committee Decision
This was not within the remit of the Authority as play areas and equipment was the
responsibility for Town and Community Councils.

3) Llandyfaelog Community Council

Subject — Litter on rural roads, especially in areas within a radius of local fast food
take away restaurants

Committee Decision

This matter had been considered previously at a meeting where the Local Quality
Environment Strategy had been presented. Further consideration would be
undertaken as part of the Waste Strategy review.

Cyngor Sir Gar ® Carmarthenshire County Council Tudalen 25 16



3. Scrutiny Committee Activity

3.1 Scrutiny Investigations (Task and Finish)

The Committee at its Forward Work Programme Development Session held on
ot April 2021, considered a topic suggestion received from Llandyfaelog Community
Council suggesting that the Committee consider the issues in relation to fly-tipping in
Carmarthenshire. Committee Members in recognising that fly tipping was an
increasing problem in Carmarthenshire and that the consequence of fly-tipping had a
detrimental effect on the environment and communities suggested to consider this
matter be a review for the Task and Finish Group.

The Committee, in ratifying its Forward Work Programme on 2" July 2021
unanimously resolved that its Task and Finish arrangements for 2021-22-23 would be
as follows:

1) *Review on the Fly tipping within Carmarthenshire
2) Review on Dog Breeding in Carmarthenshire.

*The Committee in making the above decision superseded the Committee’s previous
decision made at its meeting held on 15" November 2019 — “unanimously resolved
that dog breeding in Carmarthenshire be the subject for Committee’s next Task and
Finish review in 2021”.

The Committee, having agreed to undertake a Task and Finish on the issues of fly-
tipping, received the Task and Finish Draft Planning and Scoping Document on the
Management of Fly-tipping within Carmarthenshire and agreed the politically balanced
Membership of the Task and Finish group. The Task and Finish Group commenced
the review in September 2021.

However, the Task and Finish Group at its first meeting on 8" September, 2021
received an unexpected update from the Director of Environment on internal matters
that had arisen since the Scrutiny Committee agreement on its Task and Finish
arrangements and the endorsement of the review planning and scoping document in
July. Considering the information received, the Group unanimously agreed to defer
the review on Flytipping to 2022, following the Election process. At its meeting in
November, the Committee received an update report from the Task and Finish Group
which outlined the Groups decision and reasons.

At it's meeting in November 2022, the Committee considered and endorsed a revised
Task and Finish Planning and Scoping Document on the management of Fly-tipping
in Carmarthenshire. The Committee formulated a politically balanced Task and Finish
group to undertake the review which is due to conclude in the summer of 2023.

Cyngor Sir Gar ® Carmarthenshire County Council Tudalen 26 17



3.2 Member Development and Site Visits

Following the elections members received an extensive development programme
which included the following sessions / seminars during 2022/23:-

Introduction and overview of how to use Zoom

Introduction and overview of mod.gov

Code of Conduct, Ethics, Standards, Legal Duties & Responsibilities
Introduction to Carmarthenshire County Council & Launch of Induction
Programme

Constitutional Matters & Meeting Preparation

Local Government Finance

External Regulators

Scrutiny in Carmarthenshire

Climate Change, Mitigation and De Carbonisation

Planning

Equalities & Diversity

Carbon Literacy

Personal Safety and Self Care, Stress Management, Personal Resilience, Work-
life balance

Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse & Sexual Violence
Cyber Security

Introduction to Marketing and Media

Armed Forces

Complaints Policy

Transform, Innovate and Change

Emergency Planning

Speed Reduction Legislation

Council Owned Companies

Section 106 Legal Agreements

Council Performance Management Framework

Modernising Education Programme Review

Future Waste Changes

Dyfed Pension Fund Training

Sustainable Communities for Learning

Member Enquiries

Corporate Strategy Workshop

Housing Repairs Briefing

Conservation Areas Briefing

In addition to the above, several budget seminars were held during January as part of
the Council’s consultation process on the 2022/23 Revenue Budget and the five-year
capital programme.

Scrutiny Committee Members included informal focused development sessions to their
Forward Work Plan which helped them to gain a more informed understanding about the
policies and some of the operational aspects of the main topic areas that are important and
relevant to communities within Carmarthenshire.

Cyngor Sir Gar ® Carmarthenshire County Council Tudalen 27 18



A series of focussed development sessions took place on a specific subject directly following
the scheduled formal scrutiny Committee meeting. Officers provided a presentation on the
agreed topic, with the Cabinet Member present. This provided an opportunity for Scrutiny
Members to ask questions and exchange ideas.

Members were provided with the following development sessions:-

e Local Environment Quality Strategy

¢ Flooding

e Highway Asset Management Plan & Update on WG Speed Limit Change in
Legislation (20mph)

e Conservation and update on the managing land pilot scheme for Pollinators in
Carmarthenshire

e Waste

e Update on the Area Planning Board’s Drug & Alcohol Misuse Strategy

e Substance Misuse

4. Challenges

The past year included challenges in respect of a change in committee members following
the elections in May 2023 however the committee worked to overcome this by providing
development sessions and scrutiny support.

In addition, September saw a change in scrutiny name, remits, and reporting processes which
took both members and officers time to get accustomed to.

Unfortunately, circulating reports for scrutiny by e-mail did not have the same level of
engagement and quality scrutiny as a formal meeting. Therefore, going forward Members
will be reminded of their duty to undertake scrutiny even when receiving the reports under a
different cover.

5. Committee’s Future Work

The future work of the Committee will be considered regularly as part of the Forward Work
Programme and will continue to be monitored during the course of the year.

As part of the development of the forward work programme, the Gateway Framework will aid
Committee members to develop a Forward Work Programme to enable focused Scrutiny to
take place ensuring that there is a more equitable distribution of reports, that statutory
responsibilities are focussed and are properly aligned with the council’s strategic priorities.

The Committee will continue to seek topics for discussion from Town and Community
Councils annually more information on how to submit a topic for consideration and ask
questions at a Scrutiny meeting is available on our Scrutiny webpage:
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-democracy/committees-
meetings/scrutiny/#.Xp7Am6aQxMs

Cyngor Sir Gar ® Carmarthenshire County Council Tudalen 28 19


https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-democracy/committees-meetings/scrutiny/#.Xp7Am6aQxMs
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/home/council-democracy/committees-meetings/scrutiny/#.Xp7Am6aQxMs

6. Support for the Scrutiny Function

Support for Carmarthenshire County Council's Scrutiny function is provided by the
Democratic Services Unit, based in the Administration & Law Division of the Chief Executive's
Department.

Support for the Scrutiny function includes:

Providing support and constitutional advice to the Council's Scrutiny Committees and
to members of those Committees as well as producing minutes of their meetings and
ensuring items arising from those meetings are actioned,;

Giving support and advice in relation to the functions of the Council's Scrutiny
Committees to executive and non-executive members of the Council and its officers;
Managing the strategic development of Scrutiny in Carmarthenshire through engaging
in national and regional Scrutiny networks and initiatives, supporting the Chairs and
Vice-Chairs of Scrutiny Forum, and the Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs Executive
Board Forum;

Advising and supporting the implementation of the requirements of the Local
Government (Wales) Measure 2011 as guidance is published;

Managing the co-ordination and development of the Scrutiny forward work
programmes in conjunction with Scrutiny members;

Managing and co-ordinating Scrutiny review work, including the operation of scrutiny
task and finish groups, authoring reports in conjunction with the groups, and assisting
in the implementation and monitoring of completed reviews;

Managing the Scrutiny member development programme;

Despatching agendas for Scrutiny Committee meetings a minimum of 4 working days
prior to the meeting.

For more information on Scrutiny in Carmarthenshire including forward work
programmes, task and finish reports and annual reports, visit the County Council’s
website at: www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/scrutiny

To contact the Democratic Services Unit, please call 01267 224028 or e-mail
scrutiny@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

Cyngor Sir Gar ® Carmarthenshire County Council Tudalen29 20


http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/scrutiny
mailto:scrutiny@carmarthenshire.gov.uk

7. Committee Member Attendance

A total of 7 meetings were held by virtual means between October 2022 and May 2023.
Attendance by members of the Place, Sustainability and Climate Change Scrutiny
Committee during the 2022/23 year is shown in the table below.

Scrutiny Committee Member No. of meetings attended %

ClIr. Karen Davies 7 100
Clir. Arwel Davies 6 86
ClIr. Colin Evans 3 43
Clir Neil Lewis 6 86
Clir. Dorian Phillips 7 100
Clir. Gareth Thomas 5 71
Clir. Peter Cooper 4 57
CIJII.r. Shelly Godfrey-CoIes 3 43
(joined the Committee 24/11/22)
Clir. Tina Higgins 7 100
Clir .John James 7 100
CliIr. Gary Jones 3 43
CliIr. Sue Allen 7 100
Cllr. Nysia. Evans 1 14
(left Committee after 4/10/22)

Substitutes

No. of meetings attended

Clir. Deryk Cundy

2

Clir. Alex Evans

Clir. Dot Jones

Clir. Hefin Jones

CliIr. Michelle Donoghue

Clir. Tyssul Evans

2
1
1
1
1

Cabinet Member

No. of meetings attended

Clir. Ann Davies

1

Clir. Philip Hughes

Clir. Alun Lenny

Cllr. Edward Thomas

Clir. Aled Vaughan-Owen

N | O N =

Cyngor Sir Gar ® Carmarthenshire County Council

Tudalen 30

21



Eitem Rhif 5

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU
LLE, CYNALIADWYEDD A NEWID YR HINSAWDD

21 GORFFENAF 2023

BLAENRAGLEN WAITH AR GYFER 2023/24

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU -
LLE, CYNALIADWYEDD A NEWID YR HINSAWDD

Ystyried y materion canlynol a chyflwyno sylwadau arnynt:

Body Pwyllgor yn cadarnhau ei Flaenraglen Waith ar gyfer 2023/24.

Rhesymau:

Bod y Pwyllgor yn cadarnhau ac yn nodi ei Gynllun Gwaith i'r Dyfodol ar gyfer 2023/24.

Angen cyfeirio’r mater at y’r Cabinet er mwyn gwneud penderfyniad: NAC OES

Aelod y’r Cabinet sy’n gyfrifol am y Portffolio: DDIM YN BERTHNASOL

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: Swyddi: Rhifau Ffon / Cyfeiriadau E-bost:
Prif Weithredwr
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth:
Linda Rees-Jones Pennaeth Gweinyddiaeth a’r 01267 224010
Gyfraith [rjones@sirgar.gov.uk

Awdur yr adroddiad:
Janine Owen Ymgynghorydd Cynorthwyol 01267 224030
JanineOwen@sirgar.gov.uk

PN
Cyngor Sir Gﬁ)
Carmarthenshire
County Council Tudalen 31



mailto:lrjones@sirgar.gov.uk

PLACE, SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE CHANGE
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

21ST JULY 2023

PLACE, SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE CHANGE
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

FORWARD WORK PLAN 2023/24

Article 6.2 of the County Council’s Constitution states that: “Each scrutiny committee is required
to develop and publish an annual forward work programme, identifying issues and reports to be
considered during the course of a municipal year”.

The Forward Work Plan:

e Provides an opportunity for members to determine the priority issues to be considered by
their scrutiny committee over the course of the next year.

e Provides the Committee opportunities to scrutinise both budget and performance monitoring
reports.

e Provides a focus for both officers and members, and is a vehicle for communicating the work
of the Committee to the public. The Plan (see attached report) will be published on the
council’s website and will be updated on a quarterly basis —
www.carmarthenshire.gov.uk/scrutiny.

e Ensures agreement of provisional agendas for scheduled scrutiny meetings within the council
diary. The Plan is a flexible document that can be amended to reflect additional meetings and
agenda items during the course of the year.

Members will recall that the Committee held an informal Forward Work Plan development
session on 13t June, 2023 to begin the process of formulating the forward work plan for 2023/24.
This afforded Members the opportunity to develop the Committee’s Forward Work Plan within
the remit of the Place, Sustainability and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee.

The outcome of this meeting is now presented to the Committee in the Forward Work Plan for
confirmation. In addition, throughout the year Members will consider the Cabinet’s Forward
Work Plan to identify pre-decision reports they wish to place on the Scrutiny Forward Work
Plan.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? | Forward Work Plan 2023/24

PN
Cyngor Sir Gﬁ)
Carmarthenshire
County Council Tudalen 32



http://www.carmarthenshire.gov.uk/scrutiny

IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with

this report.

Signed: Linda Rees-Jones Head of Administration & Law

Policy, Crime & Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical Assets
Disorder and Management | Implications

Equalities Issues

YES YES NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities — In line with requirements of the County
Council’s Constitution.

2. Legal - In line with requirements of the County Council’s Constitution.

CONSULTATIONS

I confirm that the appropriate consultations have taken in place and the outcomes are as detailed
below:

Linda Rees-Jones Head of Administration & Law

Signed:

1. Local Member(s) — N/A

2. Community / Town Council — N/A

3. Relevant Partners — N/A

4. Staff Side Representatives and other Organisations — N/A

CABINET MEMBER PORTFOLIO | N/A
HOLDERS AWARE/

CONSULTED remit have been informed of the draft FWP.

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW:

The relevant Cabinet Members to the Committee’s

Title of Document Locations that the papers are available for public inspection

The Place, Sustainability and
Climate Change Scrutiny

Meetings from September 2015 onwards:

http://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/ieListMeetings.aspx? Commit

Committee Reports and Minutes | teeld=134

PN
Cyngor Sir Gar ’
Carmarthenshire
County Council

Tudalen 33


http://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=134
http://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=134

Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Place, Sustainability and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee - Forward Work Plan 2023/24

the Management

Update

Report (April —

Pest Control

Management Plan-2

rd 11t March :
215 July 2023 | 39 October 2023 | 2> NOVSMPET | 14m December 2023 | 30 January 2024 0024 2214 April 2024
A Strategic Plan :
. Highways Asset o Budget
Forward Work for Managing Our Management Plan | Planning Budget Mor_utorlng Equestrian Monitoring Report
Programme Land for Annual Statement | Enforcement Report (April - Strate (April — December
2023/24 Pollinators in October 2023) gy P
: update 2023)
Carmarthenshire
Task and Finish
Group Report on Waste Strategy Budget Monitoring Flood Risk Public Rights of

Way

Free Parking

Monitoring Report
Q2

drug related ASB and
crime)

of Fly-tipping in August 2023)

Carmarthenshire.

PS&CC Scrutiny . Environment Act

Committee Annual Egl\?év\\/lvaﬁe ;?r(;?LTO'Iet Electric Fleet Forward Plan — (Jan

Report 2022/2023 gy 2023 — Dec 2025)
Performance PSPO (alcohol and

PSPO (prevention
dog fouling)

Scrutiny Committee Members to scrutinise the following reports via e-mail —
as agreed by at the FWP development session on 13" June 2023
Forthcoming Items to include scrutiny queries and feedback at the next meeting.

Budget Monitoring
Report (April 2022-
Feb 2023)

Shoreline
Management Plan-
2; an update on its
Delivery.

Council Annual
Report 2022-23

o

Budget Monitoring
Report (April to June
2023)

GE ualey

Updated 4/7/23



https://carmarthenshireintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=51068&PlanId=26&RPID=7331881
https://carmarthenshireintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=51068&PlanId=26&RPID=7331881
https://carmarthenshireintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=51068&PlanId=26&RPID=7331881
https://carmarthenshireintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=51068&PlanId=26&RPID=7331881
https://carmarthenshireintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=51068&PlanId=26&RPID=7331881
https://carmarthenshireintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=47318&PlanId=26&RPID=7331881
https://carmarthenshireintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=47318&PlanId=26&RPID=7331881
https://carmarthenshireintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=52848&PlanId=26&RPID=7331881
https://carmarthenshireintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=52848&PlanId=26&RPID=7331881
https://carmarthenshireintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=52866&PlanId=26&RPID=7331881
https://carmarthenshireintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=52866&PlanId=26&RPID=7331881
https://carmarthenshireintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=52801&PlanId=26&RPID=7331881
https://carmarthenshireintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=52801&PlanId=26&RPID=7331881
https://carmarthenshireintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=52801&PlanId=26&RPID=7331881
https://carmarthenshireintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=52801&PlanId=26&RPID=7331881
https://carmarthenshireintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=51431&PlanId=26&RPID=7331881
https://carmarthenshireintranet.moderngov.co.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=51431&PlanId=26&RPID=7331881

PS&CC Scrutiny Member — Focussed Development Sessions/Site Visits:-

The Committee has requested for the following focused development sessions to take place following each of the scheduled formal
Committee meetings (unless otherwise notified).

Cwm Environmental Ltd — 30/6/2023

TASK & FINISH REVIEW:

The Committee at its meeting on 2" July 2021 unanimously resolved that its Task and Finish arrangements for 2021-22-23 would be as follows:
1) *Review on the Fly tipping within Carmarthenshire
2) Review on Dog Breeding in Carmarthenshire.

Update: The Task and Finish Group at its first meeting on 8" September, 2021 received an update from the Director of Environment on internal
matters that had arisen since the Scrutiny Committee agreement on its Task and Finish arrangements and the endorsement of the review
planning and scoping document in July. Considering the information received, the Group unanimously agreed to defer the review on Flytipping to
2022 following the Election process. The Committee at its meeting on 25" November 2021 received and noted a report from the Task and Finish
Group which outlined the reasons for the deferral. A revised Planning and Scoping Document was considered and a group was formulated at the
Committee meeting held on 24" November 2022.

*This decision supersedes the Committee’s decision made at its meeting held on 15" November 2019 — “unanimously resolved that dog breeding in
Carmarthenshire be the subject for Committee’s next Task and Finish review in 2021

The Task and Finish review on flytipping is currently being finalised.

9€ usfepny

Updated 4/7/23



Eitem Rhif 6

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU
LLE, CYNALIADWYEDD A NEWID YR HINSAWDD

21 GORFFENAF 2023

Adroddiad terfynol Grwp Gorchwyl a Gorffen

ADOLYGIAD O REOLI
TIPIO ANGHYFREITHLON YN SIR GAERFYRDDIN

Ystyried y materion canlynol a chyflwyno sylwadau arnynt:

Cymeradwyo'r adroddiad a'r argymhellion sydd i'w cyflwyno gerbron y Cabinet.

Y rhesymau:

e Yn ei gyfarfod ar 24 Tachwedd 2022, cytunodd y Pwyllgor Craffu Lle, Cynaliadwyedd a
Newid Hinsawdd ar y ddogfen gynllunio a chwmpasu a ffurfio Grwp Gorchwyl a Gorffen
sy'n gytbwys yn wleidyddol i gynnal adolygiad o reoli Tipio Anghyfreithlon yn Sir
Gaerfyrddin.

e Lluniodd y Grwp yr argymhellion sydd yn yr adroddiad ar 6l ystyried yr ystod o
dystiolaeth oedd dan sylw mewn cyfres o gyfarfodydd rhwng mis Rhagfyr 2022 a mis
Mehefin 2023.

Aelod y Bwrdd Gweithredol sy'n gyfrifol am y Portffolio:
Cyng. Aled Vaughan Owen

Cadeirydd y Grwp Swyddi: Rhifau Ffon / Cyfeiriadau E-
Gorchwyl a Gorffen: Bost:

Y Cyng. John James
JohnJames@sirgar.gov.uk

Awdur yr Adroddiad: 01267 224030

Jonathan Morgan Y Pennaeth Tai

Dan John Pennaeth Dros Dro y Gwasanaethau | jmorgan@sirgar.gov.uk

Sue Watts Amgylcheddol a Gwastraff dwjohn@sirgar.gov.uk

Janine Owen Rheolwr Diogelu'r Amgylchedd jmorgan@sirgar.gov.uk
Swyddog Gwasanaethau JanineOwen@sirgar.gov.uk

Democrataidd

P N
Cyngor Sir Gé)
Carmarthenshire Tudalen 37
County Council



mailto:jmorgan@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:dwjohn@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:jmorgan@sirgar.gov.uk
mailto:JanineOwen@sirgar.gov.uk

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

PLACE, SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE CHANGE
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

21STJULY 2023

Task and Finish Group Final Report

REVIEW OF THE MANAGEMENT OF
FLYTIPPING IN CARMARTHENSHIRE

1.0 Review Background

The Environment and Public Protection Committee, at its informal Forward Work Programme
Development Session held on 9t April 2021, considered a topic suggestion from a Community
Council who submitted a suggestion that the Committee to consider the issues in relation to
fly-tipping in Carmarthenshire.

Committee Members recognised that fly-tipping was an increasing problem throughout
Carmarthenshire and that the consequence had a detrimental effect on the environment and
communities.

Following an informal agreement, the Committee, at its meeting on 2" July 2021 considered
a Planning and Scoping document on a Task and Finish Group’s review of the Management
of Fly-tipping within Carmarthenshire. The Committee unanimously accepted the document
and officially commissioned a task and finish group to undertake a focussed review which
commenced in September 2021. However, following an update from the Director of
Environment at the first meeting, the Group unanimously agreed to defer the review on fly-
tipping to 2022, following the Election process. Subsequently, the Committee, at its meeting
on 25th November, 2021 received and noted a report from the Task and Finish Group which
outlined the reasons for the deferral.

A revised Planning and Scoping Document was endorsed on 24th November 2022 and a
politically balanced group of 6 members was formulated.

The Group, in accordance with the scoping and planning document carried out a focussed
review by exploring the relevant policies, the current management process and considered
how to improve upon them in order to help to reduce fly-tipping whilst using resources
effectively.

P N
Cyngor Sir Gé)
Carmarthenshire Tudalen 38
County Council




2.0 The Scope and main aims of the review

The scope and aims of the review were formulated to consider and evaluate the current
internal processes, operational issues and partnership arrangements of fly tipping on public
and private land and explore improvements to help to reduce Fly Tipping, making sure we
maximise the effectiveness of the resources available.

The subject for review aligns with the Council’s Vision; 'Life is for living, let’s start, live and age
well in a healthy, safe and prosperous environment' contributing to the objectives connecting
to the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 2015.

The Group undertook a review to:

e Review the drivers of Fly-tipping in Carmarthenshire;

¢ |dentify and review other areas of the UK where there have been successful changes
to policies and procedures that will then have a positive impact on Fly Tipping;

¢ Investigate best practice from other local authorities across the country in relation to
Fly Tipping collection and handling;

¢ Investigate best practice from other local authorities regarding Fly Tipping Education,
Information Gathering, Surveillance, Enforcement and Prosecution techniques;

e Explore how the sharing of information between sections and other agencies is
currently undertaken; and

e Review the current internal processes and operational management issues of fly
tipping on public and private land in Carmarthenshire.

3.0 Corporate / community objectives and well- being objectives

The Group agreed that the review coincided with the Council’s Vision:
‘Life is for living, let’s start, live and age well in a healthy, safe and prosperous environment'

The review would contribute to achieving the following corporate / community objectives and
well- being objectives and outcomes that contributed to the following Carmarthenshire’s
Well-being Objectives from the County Council’s Corporate Strategy 2018-23
(https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1214849/corporate-strateqy-2018-23.pdf):

Start Well/Live In a Healthy Safe and Prosperous
Environment

Wellbeing Objective 8 Wellbeing Objective 12

Help people live healthy lives (tackling Looking after the environment now and for

risky behaviour & obesity) the future

Wellbeing Objective 9 Wellbeing Objective 15

Supporting good connections with friends, | Building a Better Council and Making

family and safer communities Better Use of Resources

PN
Cyngor Sir Gé)
Carmarthenshire Tudalen 39
County Council



https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1214849/corporate-strategy-2018-23.pdf

4.0 Approach

A total of 9 meetings were held between December 2022 and June 2023, during which the
Group considered evidence and information from a wide variety of sources. The sessions
were designed to provide the Group with the relevant information, context and background to
the topic.

The Task and Finish Group’s membership was as follows:

Clir. John James (Chair)
Clir. Neil Lewis (Vice Chair)
Clir. Sue Allen

Clir. Shelly Godfrey-Coles
Clir. Arwel Davies

Clir. Dorian Phillips

The Democratic Services Unit based in the Chief Executive’s Department, provided research
and general support to the Group.

The following officers provided specialist advice and support during the Group’s review:

Jonathan Morgan (Head of Housing)

Daniel John (Interim Head of Waste)

Sue Watts (Environmental Protection Manager)

Robert Williams (Public health Lead)

Steven Raymond (Environmental Enforcement Officer)
Michael Roberts (Local Environment Quality Policy Officer)
Jonathan Willis (Environmental Projects Manager)

5.0 Recommendations
The Group has concluded with the following recommendations for Cabinet approval:
» Recommendation One
To further explore the potential of streamlining the current Council’s management of
fly-tipping by way of a ‘one team’ approach in order to strengthen the departmental
management of fly-tipping between private and public land sectors.

> Recommendation Two

To improve on the current reporting and recording of fly-tipping to ensure convenience
for residents and provide a robust and accurate collation of data.

PN
Cyngor Sir Gé)
Carmarthenshire Tudalen 40
County Council




> Recommendation Three

To review and strengthen the current Education, Prevention and Communication
Strategy to include:-

i. the development of a Communications and Engagement Action Plan taking into
account different types of fly-tipping across rural and urban settings;

ii.  Utilise social media to reach and engage with the public on a regular ‘light touch’
basis to ensure messages remain current.

iii. amore prevalent presence at shows/fetes/Eisteddfod.
» Recommendation Four

To develop a co-ordinated approach with partners including robust arrangements
to work together in tackling the issue of fly-tipping.

» Recommendation Five
To increase the use of overt CCTV in identified hotspot areas.
» Recommendation Six

To develop a Fly-tipping strategy which clearly sets out the Councils approach to
flytipping.

To include:

i.  a criteria of corrective actions for first time fly-tipping offenders — Enforcement
officer’s discretion on a case-by-case basis

ii. the clearance of fly-tipping incidents during the investigation phase
» Recommendation Seven

To introduce a regular joint crime prevention / enforcement forum with Councillors,
Officers, partners and neighbouring local authorities (sharing best practice)

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? | YES

PN
Cyngor Sir Gé)
Carmarthenshire Tudalen 41
County Council




IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate
Directors / Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications
associated with this report.

Signed: Linda Rees-Jones Head of Administration & Law

Policy, Crime Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
& Disorder Management | Implications Assets
and Equalities Issues

YES YES YES NONE NONE NONE NONE

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities

Key strategic policies have been considered throughout the review and this review
contributes towards achieving the Carmarthenshire County Council Well-being
objectives as follows:

e Live Well
> Wellbeing Objective 8
Help people live healthy lives (tackling risky behaviour & obesity)
> Wellbeing Objective 9
Supporting good connections with friends, family and safer communities

e Healthy, Safe and Prosperous Environment
» Wellbeing Objective 12
Looking after the environment now and for the future
» Wellbeing Objective 15
Building a Better Council and Making Better Use of Resources

2. Legal

The development of a new fly-tipping strategy, policy and enforcement activities would
be reviewed by the CCC legal team.

3. Finance

At this stage, there are no additional costs in relation to any of the recommendations as
these would be managed by way of the current CCC staffing resources, within budget
allocations and progress monitored by way of an action plan.

PN
Cyngor Sir Gé)
Carmarthenshire Tudalen 42
County Council




CABINET PORTFOLIO HOLDER AWARE? | YES

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THESE ARE DETAILED BELOW:

Title of Document File Ref No. / Locations that the papers are available for
public inspection

Task & Finish Group Planning and | Revised Planning and Scoping Document / Minutes:

Scoping Document — PS&CC https://democracy.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/ieListDocum
Scrutiny Committee (24" ents.aspx?Cld=403&MId=7127&Ver=4

November 2022)

County Council’'s Corporate https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1214849/c
Strategy 2018-2023 orporate-strategy-2018-23.pdf

PN
Cyngor Sir Gé’
Carmarthenshire Tudalen 43
County Council



https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1214849/corporate-strategy-2018-23.pdf
https://www.carmarthenshire.gov.wales/media/1214849/corporate-strategy-2018-23.pdf

Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



A Review of
The Management of Fly Tipping
within Carmarthenshire

P N

Cyngor Sir Gé’

Carmarthenshire

County Council

A report from the Task and Finish Group —
Place, Sustainable and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee

Tudalen 45



PN c
Cyngor Sir GQ) Review Of the
oy Couner Management of Fly Tipping within Carmarthenshire

CONTENTS

Page
Chair’s Foreword 3
Members of the Task and Finish Group 4
Acknowledgements )
1.0 CONTEXT AND BACKGROUND 6
1.1 Purpose 6
1.2  Scope 6
2.0 METHODOLOGY AND PROCESS 7
2.1  Methodology 7
2.2 Process 8
3.0 LEGISLATION AND POLICIES 9
4.0 KEY FINDINGS 10
4.1  Strategic Approach 10
4.2 Data Systems and Recording 12
4.3  Education, Prevention and Communication 13
4.4  Management Arrangements 14
4.5 Enforcement Approach 15
4.6 Key Stakeholders, Expert Advisers and Witnesses 18
5.0 CONCLUSIONS 19
6.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 20
7.0 APPENDICES 22
8.0 GLOSSARY 22
Page | 2

Tudalen 46



P N
Cyngor Sir Gé) ReVieW Of the
oy Couner Management of Fly Tipping within Carmarthenshire

CHAIR’S FOREWORD

It gives me great pleasure in presenting the final report of the Task r- b
and Finish Group which was identified initially by the i
Environmental and Public Protection Scrutiny Committee and '
following a deferment and the general election the newly named

Place, Sustainability and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee 1
commissioned a review into the Management of Fly-tipping in

Carmarthenshire considering the negative impact it has on our communities and our
environment.

The waste dumped by fly-tippers is unsightly and dangerous and attracts flies and vermin,
creating the potential of spreading disease. The negative impact on our environment,
wildlife, biodiversity, and people is vast, as a lot of waste materials are hazardous and not
biodegradable. Also, fly-tipping undermines legitimate waste businesses where illegal
operators undercut those in Carmarthenshire who operate within the law.

This review has provided this Task & Finish Group with the opportunity to consider issues
and evidence in more detail through engaging with significant stakeholders. Of particular
importance it has given the Group the chance to learn more about the legislation and policies
that impact on the council such as safety, the environment, contractors, landowner’s
responsibilities, and financial implications.

Fly-tipping is a needless blight on our environment and on our communities. There are
simple, safe, and compliant ways to manage domestic and trade waste. By engaging a
recognised waste management company residents can be assured their waste will be
handled responsibly. This is one of the key messages this report wants to put over to the
residents of Carmarthenshire.

| would like to thank all the organisations and individuals who engaged with the group. Their
time and commitment provided us with an invaluable insight into local issues regarding fly-
tipping and what is currently being done and to what potentially can be done. | would also
like to thank Cabinet Member, CliIr. Aled Vaughan-Owen, all the Council Officers and the
Councillors who participated in this Task & Finish Group

Councillor John James
Chair of the Task and Finish Group and
Chair of the Environmental and Public Protection and Scrutiny Committee

Page | 3
Tudalen 47



P N
Cyngor Sir Gé) ReVieW Of the
oy Couner Management of Fly Tipping within Carmarthenshire
Members of the Task and Finish Group

Following a deferment of the review, the Place, Sustainability Committee, at its meeting on
November 2022 considered a revised Planning and Scoping document on a Task and
Finish Group’s review of the Management of Fly-tipping within Carmarthenshire. The
Committee unanimously accepted the document and officially commissioned a task and
finish group to undertake a focussed review which commenced in December 2022 which
comprised of the following cross-party membership:-

CIfr. Sue Allen Clir. Arwel Davies Clir. Shelly Godfrey-Coles

Whitland Cilycwm Burry Port
Independent Plaid Cymru Welsh Labour

Clir. John James (Chair) Clir. Neil Lewis Clir. Dorian Phillips
Burry Port Abergwili Llanboidy
Welsh Labour Plaid Cymru Plaid Cymru
Page | 4

Tudalen 48



PN c
Cyngor Sir Gé) Review Of the
oy Couner Management of Fly Tipping within Carmarthenshire

Acknowledgements:

Members of the Task and Finish Group would like to extend their sincere thanks to all
those who took part in the Review:

Internal expert advisors from the Public Protection and Environment Departments,
Carmarthenshire County Council:

Jonathan Morgan (Head of Housing)

Daniel John (Interim Head of Waste and Environmental Services)
Sue Watts (Environmental Protection Manager)

Robert Williams (Public health Lead)

Steven Raymond (Environmental Enforcement Officer)

Michael Roberts (Local Environment Quality Policy Officer)
Jonathan Willis (Environmental Projects Manager)

Cabinet Member for Climate Change, Decarbonisation and Sustainability — Councillor Aled
Vaughan-Owen

Partners:

National Resources Wales (NRW)

Mid and West Wales Fire and Rescue Service

Dyfed-Powys Police

Farmers Union Wales

Scrutiny Review Support:

Janine Owen — Democratic Services Officer

Page | 5
Tudalen 49



P N
Cyngor Sir Gé) ReVieW Of the
oy Couner Management of Fly Tipping within Carmarthenshire

1.0 CONTEXT AND BACKGROUND

The Environment and Public Protection Committee, at its informal Forward Work
Programme Development Session held on 9" April 2021, considered a topic suggestion
from a Community Council who submitted that the Committee consider the issues in relation
to fly-tipping in Carmarthenshire.

Committee Members recognised that fly-tipping was an increasing problem throughout
Carmarthenshire and that the consequence had a detrimental effect on the environment and
communities.

Following an informal agreement, the Committee, at its meeting on 2" July 2021 considered
a Planning and Scoping document on a Task and Finish Group’s review of the Management
of Fly-tipping within Carmarthenshire. The Committee unanimously accepted the document
and officially commissioned a task and finish group to undertake a focussed review which
commenced in September 2021. However, following an update from the Director of
Environment at the first meeting, the Group unanimously agreed to defer the review on fly-
tipping to 2022, following the Election process. Subsequently, the Committee, at its meeting
on 25th November, 2021 received and noted a report from the Task and Finish Group which
outlined the reasons for the deferral.

A revised Planning and Scoping Document was endorsed on 24t November 2022 and a
politically balanced group of 6 members was formulated.

The Group, in accordance with the scoping and planning document carried out a focussed
review by exploring the relevant policies, the current management process and considered
how to improve upon them in order to help to reduce fly-tipping whilst using resources
effectively.

1.1  PURPOSE

A Task and Finish Group review group was commissioned by Members of the Place,
Sustainability and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee to review the management of
fly-tipping within Carmarthenshire. Through research and information gathering, the
group was tasked to explore the potential areas for improvement and identify
recommendations for the Cabinet to consider.

1.2 SCOPE

The scope and aims of the review were formulated to consider and evaluate the
current internal processes, operational issues and partnership arrangements of fly
tipping on public and private land and explore improvements to help to reduce Fly
Tipping, making sure we maximise the effectiveness of the resources available.

The subiject for review aligns with the Council’s Vision; 'Life is for living, let’s start, live
and age well in a healthy, safe and prosperous environment' contributing to the
objectives connecting to the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 2015.

Page | 6
Tudalen 50



P N
Cyngor Sir Gé) ReVieW Of the
oy Couner Management of Fly Tipping within Carmarthenshire

The Group undertook a review to:
e Review the drivers of Fly-tipping in Carmarthenshire;

¢ Identify and review other areas of the UK where there have been successful
changes to policies and procedures that will then have a positive impact on Fly

Tipping;

e Investigate best practice from other local authorities across the country in relation to
Fly Tipping collection and handling;

e Investigate best practice from other local authorities regarding Fly Tipping
Education, Information Gathering, Surveillance, Enforcement and Prosecution
techniques;

e Explore how the sharing of information between sections and other agencies is
currently undertaken; and

e Review the current internal processes and operational management issues of fly
tipping on public and private land in Carmarthenshire.

2.0 METHODOLOGY AND PROCESS

21 METHODOLOGY

Through a series of meetings, Task and Finish Group members gathered information
on the issues in relation to Fly-tipping on both private and public land. As part of the
process and to make sure there were clear findings and recommendations the
following areas were identified as areas of focus:

The strategic approach;

Current approach to data systems and recording;
Approach to education and prevention;
Management arrangements and joint working;
Enforcement approach; and

Communication and publicity.

The above discussions were supported by involvement of partner agencies and an
assessment of the impact on the environment, landowners and communities.

The methodology applied incorporated various techniques which included a mixture
of qualitative and quantitative methods, drawing upon data received from the
Council’'s Environment and Communities departments and face to face discussions
with key stakeholders.

The review was completed in six meetings between December 2022 and April 2023.

Page | 7
Tudalen 51



PN
Cyngor Sir Gé)
Carmarthenshire
County Council

2.2

Review of the

Management of Fly Tipping within Carmarthenshire

The research included:

Desktop exercises — presentations by key officers

Interviewing key stakeholders — Enforcement and Witnesses;

Local knowledge / information obtained by the Task and Finish Group
members;

Data and evidence provided by Officers from the Environmental and
Communities departments;

Evidence provided by a presentation from the ‘Keep Britain Tidy’ campaign; and
Financial information associated with the cost of dealing with fly tipping;

PROCESS

The Place, Sustainability and Scrutiny Committee, at its meeting held on 24t
November 2022, formally received and endorsed the aims within the scoping and
planning document for the review. A cross party Task and Finish group
membership was commissioned to commence in December 2022 with a view
undertake a focussed review due to be completed in 22/23 municipal year.

The timetable of the events leading to the production of this report are set out

below:
Meeting Date Plan
Wednesday, » Desktop Research - key officers presentation
1 | 8t December 2022
» Considering the above information, the group
Reviewed and agreed the aims, project plan and
overall approach
2 | Thursday, ¢ Review the current process of the management of
26" January 2023 fly-tipping, identify policy change/ in house
improvements
e Education, prevention and intervention strategies
(promotion of behavioural change and positive
reinforcement)
3 | Tuesday Question and answer session with key stakeholders
7t February 2023
4 | Monday, e Reviewed the information received from witnesses
14t February 2023 (7/12)
¢ Reviewed the current Memorandum of
Understanding between the Local Authority and
partner Agencies

Page | 8
Tudalen 52



PN
Cyngor Sir Gé)
Carmarthenshire
County Council

Review of the

Management of Fly Tipping within Carmarthenshire

Meeting Date Plan
5 | Wednesday, Discussion with the Cabinet Member for Climate
8t" March 2023 Change, Decarbonisation and Sustainability
Group discussion on conclusions and possible
recommendations
6 | Thursday, Agreed to defer the presentation of the report to 30t
234 March 2023 June Place, Sustainability and Climate Change
meeting to allow more time to finalise report.
7 | Wednesday, Review the recommendations of the report.
3 May 2023
8 | Tuesday, Discussed the contents of the Task and Finish Group
13th June 2023 report.
9 | Monday, The Group costed the recommendations and finalised
10t July 2023 the report.
Friday, Presentation of final report by the Task and Finish
21st July 2023 Group to the Place, Sustainability and Climate
Change Scrutiny Committee

3.0 LEGISLATION AND POLICIES

Environmental Protection Act 1990;

Well-being of Future Generations Act 2015;

Fly tipping Protocol (Wales);

Welsh Government Litter and Fly Tipping Plan;

Corporate Strategy 2021-2023 (incorporating Well Being Objectives specifically for
Carmarthenshire);

» Public Services Board Wellbeing Plan 2016-2021 (currently under review); and

* Code of Practice Litter and Refuse.

* General Enforcement Policy

Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 2015 and Carmarthenshire County Council
Corporate Wellbeing Objectives

The Task and Finish Group agreed that the issues and consequences of fly-tipping also
aligns with the following specific well-being objectives.

e Live Well
> Wellbeing Objective 8
Help people live healthy lives (tackling risky behaviour & obesity)
> Wellbeing Objective 9
Supporting good connections with friends, family and safer communities

¢ Healthy, Safe and Prosperous Environment
» Wellbeing Objective 12
Looking after the environment now and for the future
» Wellbeing Objective 15
Building a Better Council and Making Better Use of Resources

Page | 9
Tudalen 53



P N
Cyngor Sir Gé) ReVieW Of the
oy Couner Management of Fly Tipping within Carmarthenshire

4.0 KEY FINDINGS

The group considered information which has been summarised below in line with the
key areas of focus that were identified during the review process.

Fly-tipping is the common term used to describe waste illegally deposited on land. The
offence of fly-tipping and the additional offences of know causing of knowingly permitting
fly-tipping are set out in Section 33 (1) of the Environmental |Protection Act 1990. The
waste can be solid or liquid and can vary on scale from the size of a bin bag of rubbish
to large scale dumping of construction.

There is also an associated offence relating to the unlawful deposit of waste from a
motor vehicle, whereby the person who controls or is in a position to control the vehicle
shall be treated as knowingly causing the waste to be deposited.

Fly-tipping is a national issue, driven by a number of different influencing factors.

e Seasonally fly-tips will fluctuate in number and type, for example, the number
of fly-tipping incidents containing garden waste increases during the summer.

e There is a direct correlation between the number of fly-tips and the state of
the economy.

e Other influencing factors include differing socio-economic groups, transient
populations and absent landlords.

4.1 Strategic Approach
4.1.1 Current situation

A high volume of fly tipped waste incidents is blighting communities within
Carmarthenshire. The waste poses a threat to the environment which spoils
the enjoyment of towns and villages. It is one of the most common forms of
anti-social behaviour, constituting a criminal offence.

Fly-tipping can be defined as:

e Black bags (bags of rubbish) — fly-tipped by residents & linked to
presentation of waste:

Commercial Waste fly-tipping:

Fly-tipping by transient populations:

General fly-tipping by residents (bulky waste); and

Recycling bring sites and litter bin abuse.

As part of the corporate well-being objectives one focus was enabling
communities and environment to be healthy, safe and prosperous
(Prosperous Communities).

Page | 10
Tudalen 54



P N
Cyngor Sir Gé) ReVieW Of the
oy Couner Management of Fly Tipping within Carmarthenshire

Carmarthenshire Council currently manage incidents of fly-tipping by way of the
following streams of approach:-

e Public Land
Waste and Environmental Services, Environment Department

e Private Land
Environmental Protection Section, Communities Department

o lllegal Waste Sites
Minerals and Waste Planning Section, Place and Infrastructure
Department (construction and demolition waste)

41.2 Findings

It was found that the Council’s Cleansing Service was clearing reported fly-tipping
within the target of four days on nearly all occasions; the problem was that
incidents were happening again just as fast as they were being cleared. This
evidenced a need to develop a strategic approach, which focused on preventing
and reducing the volume of fly-tipping.

The drivers for fly-tipping incidents were identified as follows:-

* Criminal Element/financial benefit

» Lack of information/educating owners, occupiers, landlords etc

» Social Economic/areas of deprivation

» Local Authority Policies on disposal of waste following Welsh Government
Policies and Targets

« COVID and access to services

» Access to services/infrastructure — Household Waste Recycling Centres /
Bulky Waste Service

» Convenience

4.1.3 Observations

At present there is no clear strategic approach to fly-tipping with the services being
reactionary in their approach to clearance, enforcement and prevention.

Develop a clear strategy to inform our future thinking around fly tipping.

A strategy would need to develop a vision and associated actions around several
key themes: education; awareness raising; partnership working; and enforcement.
Working collectively with residents, businesses, housing associations, landlords
and our partners. With data underpinning our focus on hotspots and ensuring we
educate as well as enforce.

Page | 11
Tudalen 55



PN c
Cyngor Sir Gé) Review Of the
oy Couner Management of Fly Tipping within Carmarthenshire

4.2Data Systems and Recording

4.2.1 Current situation

Fly-tipping incidents

Total recorded incidents

6000
5000

4000
3000
2000
1000 . I

0
Apr15 Apr 16 Apr17 Apr18 Apr 19 Apr20 Apr21 Apr22
-Mar -Mar -Mar -Mar -Mar -Mar -Mar -Mar
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23

The information below, highlights the Fixed Penalty Notices (FPNs) and court
proceedings for the period 01/04/2021 to 31/03/22 and 01/04/2022 to 01/12/2022.
Litter FPN’s are issued for small scale illegal deposits of waste eg: cardboard box,

black bag.
Period 1st April 2021 to 31st Period 1st April 2022 to 20t of
March 2022* March 2023
Litter 62 114
Fly Tipping 11 33

*Period 15t of April 2021 to 31st of March 2022 coincides with lockdown restrictions easing.

Court proceedings 15t April 2022 to current date.

Prosecuted Pending Prosecutions
Litter 2 1
Fly tipping 12 5

At present the Council has multiple means of collating and recording fly-tipping data with
the following systems being used (see section 7.0 for the details of each system):

Flymapper

TASK system

APP system

Firmstep

Fix my street

Internal reporting through Member enquiry process.

At present there is no consolidation/assessment of the data recorded across these
multiple reporting/recording systems at local and national level. This leads to an
inconsistent method of recording and results in a duplication of incidents being recorded in
the nationally reported figures. However, the exact duplication figure is difficult to quantify.

Page | 12
Tudalen 56



Cyngor Sir

P N
Gar Review of the
oy Couner Management of Fly Tipping within Carmarthenshire

4.3

4.2.2 Findings

The current approved Welsh Government reporting system is Fly-mapper, however,
this system does not have a function to act as a work management tool. The APP
system logs service complaints of fly-tipping sending information to the relevant team
thereby giving more accurate data. However, this system does not have the ability to
track and identify trends or hot-spot locations. TASK is also used to record public and
member requests through the Democratic Services reporting and website systems.
With the multiple reporting and recording methods in use, it was found that a single fly-
tipping event was being recorded and reported several times.

In addition, there was currently a lack of clarity of what constitutes ‘fly tipping’, with
complaints of littering, missed refuse collections, accumulation of waste in gardens
and bags (stickered) that had been out for collection over days. These were a sample
of complaints logged as ‘fly tipping’ causing an over inflation of the recorded fly-tipping
figures.

4.2.3 Observations

A clear definition of Fly-tipping is required to provide clarity of reporting and recording
supported by a single recording system to avoid duplication and erroneous records. This
would enable the Council to accurately report the levels of fly-tipping and develop a targeted
strategic approach.

Education, Prevention and Communication
4.3.1 Current situation

Council members endorsed a Local Environment Quality (LEQ) Management plan
2022-2026 which detailed aspects of education and prevention in relation to fly-

tipping.

Carmarthenshire County Council is also heavily involved in Caru Cymru which is a
collaboration project between 24 partners that aims to tackle Local Environmental
Quality (LEQ) issues across Wales. This project engages people and communities in
developing solutions to improve the environment for people and wildlife alike, bringing
together LEQ expertise, undertaking research, targeted behaviour changes
campaigns, and aiming to prevent litter at source and support community clean ups.

4.3.2 Findings

Although work had been delivered on Local Environmental Quality which
encompassed in-part Fly-tipping, given the scale of the issue within Carmarthenshire,
a greater emphasis on fly-tipping was needed with the development of a stand-alone
education and prevention approach aligning with the objectives of reduction and
prevention.

Research revealed that neighbouring authorities had used the ‘Nudge Theory’ which
had proved successful by effectively reminding people that they could be being
watched and that fly tipping is a crime.

Page | 13
Tudalen 57



P N
Cyngor Sir Gé) Re‘liew Of the
oy o Management of Fly Tipping within Carmarthenshire

At present, there is not a stand-alone approach for fly-tipping for Communication,
Publicity and Engagement as this is undertaken in through the LEQ channels.

R T
\

FLY-TIPPING ™

IS a criminal offence

[section 33 of the Environmental Pratection Act)

- Maximum penalty £50,0000r }
12 months imprisonment!

Fhy-tipping is
suitable

£50,
The Police can ehicles used far iy

If you witness fly-tipping please report it

SOEX & TEX2

tipping, ECTY may ba ued

4.3.3 Observations

Group Members were keen to ensure that opportunities were being missed in
educating the public about harm and damage that fly-tipping does to the environment,
whilst at the same time provide guidance and supportive information to victims of fly-
tipping. Members were keen for the Council to enhance the following areas:

Improved attendance at local shows

Requests for attendance

School education program

Communication of enforcement activity and perpetrators

4.4 Management arrangements
4.4.1 Current situation

The Environmental Enforcement Team are responsible for Investigating
Environmental crimes committed on “Public Land”. The team of officers have been
afforded legislative powers to respond to such incidents as Fly Tipping. The team
has no responsibility to clear and remove fly-tipping from public land and this duty is
undertaken by the cleansing service. The Enforcement Team when at full strength,
consists of one line manager and eight Environmental Enforcement Officers. The
County is divided into four areas, with two Officers operating within each area.

The Public Health Team in the Environmental Protection Section are responsible for
investigating and enforcing fly tipping on private land. Fly-tipping is a non-statutory
waste (where it is not a public health issue). The Team is made up of four officers,
each with their own area.

The two teams engage with each other on issues and involve both other internal and
external stakeholders and have strong relationships with key partners.

Page | 14
Tudalen 58



P N
Cyngor Sir Gé) ReVieW Of the
oy Couner Management of Fly Tipping within Carmarthenshire

4.4.2 Findings

At present, the two-team internal approach often leads to a duplication of efforts and
also misunderstandings in terms of the scope and responsibility of each team. The
public and Members desire a speedy resolution to fly-tipping and a separated
approach could impact on the timeliness of in terms of managing fly-tipping incidents.

Although there are good working relationships with partner organisations this is often
done on a reactionary basis and a result of an incident. A formalised strategic multi-
agency group could enhance working arrangements and develop a greater
understanding of fly-tipping causation, hot spots and perpetrators.

The work of the two departments raised concern in regard to the lack of knowledge
of the work each department was undertaking. Whilst the approach to dealing with
each reported incident was being managed, the level of duplication that was and
could potentially occur was of concern. It was felt that the link between the
departments could be better streamlined and strengthened by way of a one team
approach. The current process to deal with incidents of fly-tipping on private land is
located at Appendix A and public land at Appendix B.

4.4.3 Observations

Members of the task and finish group whilst considering the management
arrangements felt that there may be benefit in exploring the following to avoid
Duplication of efforts and improve efficiency:

One Team Approach: A Single team responsible for public and private land fly-
tipping.

Timely clearance: Enforcement officers require adequate resources/equipment to
clear fly-tipping at the investigation stage.

4.5 Enforcement Approach
4.5.1 Current situation

Currently, in Carmarthenshire, fly-tipping is being investigated where evidence is
available, this includes evidence from local residents who may have witnessed the
incident. The Council’s Enforcement Team of 8 officers has a multi-faceted purpose
including tackling environmental issues, including dog fouling, litter, abandoned
vehicles, commercial waste management and prosecutions for fly-tipping cases
where evidence is found. All Enforcement Officers obtain the skills, training and
knowledge required to effectively tackle fly-tipping. Carmarthenshire Council actively
encourages stakeholders to report fly-tipping incidents on the public highway and
other council owned land online or telephone.

The team effectively deals with environmental crime, which they have been afforded
a range of legislative powers enabling them to catch and deter those who illegally
deposit waste. The principal piece of legislation widely used by the team is, “The
Environmental Protection Act 1990”. Sections contained within the Act allows the
enforcement team to combat and target such instances as:

Page | 15
Tudalen 59



P N
Cyngor Sir Gé) ReVieW Of the
oy Couner Management of Fly Tipping within Carmarthenshire

Description of Offence Max FPN Max Penalty Upon
Amount Conviction

Persons who lllegally Deposit Waste £400 Unlimited

(Fly Tipping) Fine/lImprisonment

Persons Who Transport Waste and Fail | £300 Unlimited Fine

To Produce Waste Documents

Householders Who Fail To Comply With | £300 On Summary Conviction

Duty of Care Regs Unlimited Fine

Persons Who Deposit Litter £125 £2500

Persons Who Fail To Comply With a £100 £1000

Waste Receptacle Notice

Additional powers are contained in The Control of Pollution (Amendment) Act 1989.

Description of Offence Max FPN Max Penalty Upon
Amount Conviction

Persons Who Fail To Produce Authority | £300 £5000

To Transport Waste

Contained within the Legislation, the enforcement team can issue Fixed Penalty
Notices (FPN’s) as a way for an offender to discharge any liability to conviction for
the offence. As a guide to how officers determine the category and consequence for
the offender, consideration is given to the following.

e Up to the size of one black bag — Litter FPN = £125
e Between one black bag and eight bags — Fly Tipping FPN = £400
e Over eight black bags = Prosecution

Any mitigating circumstances could require a different approach eg: The waste was
classified to be hazardous waste.

In the event of a business being caught fly tipping, there is no provision to issue a
fixed penalty notice, and the matter would be subjected to court proceedings.

Carmarthenshire County Council’'s Environmental Enforcement Team have a range
of CCTV systems which are deployed to deter and catch those who illegally deposit
waste or fly tip at locations commonly known as ‘hot spots’. Hot spots can be classed
as areas known to be subjected to high levels of fly tipping incidents.

The Enforcement Team regularly receive requests to deploy CCTV. Any CCTV
deployment is not regarded as a panacea to a problem but is regarded as a ‘useful
tool’ in reducing fly tipping incidents.

Page | 16
Tudalen 60



P N

Cyngor Sir Gé’

Carmarthenshire
County Council

Review of the

Management of Fly Tipping within Carmarthenshire

4.5.2 Findings

The recycling facility at Carway Football Club was identified as a fly-tipping hotspot
with regular incidents occurring. Carmarthenshire County Council in partnership with
Carway Football Club deployed a CCTV system in order to capture the perpetrators
in the act providing suitable evidence towards a potential prosecution.

Page | 17
Tudalen 61



P N
Cyngor Sir Gé) ReVieW Of the
oy Couner Management of Fly Tipping within Carmarthenshire

CCTV was deployed at this location on Two separate Occasions —
15th March 2022 — 27th June 2022 and 4th July 2022 — 27th October 2022. The success
of the CCTV is shown in the statistics:-

Total FPN’s Issued = 36.
Paid = 29.
Straight Prosecution = 1

Prosecutions.
Court Hearings = 3 All Guilty.
Files submitted to Legal Awaiting Trial = 2

Other result
Formal Caution =1
Failure to Prosecute = 1 (Outside Statute of Limitations).

4.5.3 Observations

The current approach to enforcement is either a verbal warning, a Fixed Penalty Notice
or a court summons. Group Members are keen to develop an approach where a
corrective action for first time offenders could be implemented.

It was clear that the use of CCTV at Carway evidenced the benefits of such an approach
the it was acknowledged that an increased CCTV activity in a coordinated way could be
of benefit in reducing further fly-tipping in known areas.

4.6 Key Stakeholders, Expert Advisers and Witnesses

Whilst managing fly-tipping involves working with a range of external stakeholders the
group at its meeting on 7t February, 2023 invited the following stakeholders to the
meeting in order to gain a better understanding of how fly-tipping is managed outside of
the Authority and to gauge the level of integration and effectiveness of the current

approach:-
e Chairman, Carway Football Club;
¢ Mid and West Wales Fire and Rescue Service;
e Dyfed Powys Police;
e Natural Resource Wales.

A series of questions were asked which provided valuable information to inform this
report. The discussions highlighted that stakeholders had a range of approaches to
respond to fly-tipping and worked with others in order to prevent and educate about fly-

tipping.

Members of the Task and Finish Group would like to thank stakeholders for their
assistance and openness during the course of the investigation. Relevant information
has helped in the formulation of the recommendations to Cabinet.

Page | 18
Tudalen 62



P N
Cyngor Sir Gé) ReVieW Of the
oy Couner Management of Fly Tipping within Carmarthenshire
4.6.1 Observations

Members recognised the value of working with partners in a co-ordinated approach and
felt that it would be beneficial to make robust arrangements to work together in tackling
the issue of fly-tipping.

5.0 CONCLUSIONS
After all the evidence was collated, the following conclusions were drawn:

Following the analysis of the research undertaken, together with the information gathered,
Members of the Task and Finish Group arrived at the following conclusions:-

1. Fly-tipping whether it be on private or public land in Carmarthenshire has a significant
impact on residents, the environment and council resources;

2. Based on the overall evidence, Members realised that improvements could be made
to strengthen and improve the way the local authority managed fly-tipping in
Carmarthenshire;

3. Infinding that whilst the current approach to fly-tipping was reactionary and dictated by
demand, with enforcement being exercised as necessary, Members strongly believed
that investment in advisory/education/prevention would be a sustainable approach
rather than continuing to invest in advancing enforcement;

4. Reporting issues were arising in the fact that there was an absence in a clear definition
of fly tipping and a strategy;

5. The internal management of fly-tipping on public and private between the two
departments managing fly-tipping on public and private land raised concern. It was felt
that the link between the departments could be streamlined and strengthened by way
of a one team approach;

6. The research in relation to the provision of CCTV at the Carway Football Club provided
clear evidence of a marked improvement deterring fly-tipping in the area. It was felt
that in identifying hotspots and working in partnership this could be replicated providing
a solution for the area;

7. A decision/definition on types of waste to be cleared from private land (with consent of
the landowner) including quantity limit (MoU with NRW =<20m3). This is to include
aesthetics, cost, implications on consequences (wrong messages to perpetrators that
waste can be dumped and will be cleared with little recourse in Carmarthenshire).

Page | 19
Tudalen 63



P N
Cyngor Sir Gé) ReVieW Of the
oy Couner Management of Fly Tipping within Carmarthenshire

6.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

Task and finish group have undertaken extensive research on the current internal
management of fly-tipping in regard to both public and private land. In considering the
findings of the research and drawing the conclusion propose that the Cabinet approve the
following recommendations:

Recommendation One

To further explore the potential of streamlining the current Council’s management of fly-
tipping by way of a ‘one team’ approach in order to strengthen the departmental
management of fly-tipping between private and public land sectors.

Cost implication Implementation Term
This will be developed as part of the review Medium Term

into the options and considered within the

analysis.

Recommendation Two

To improve on the current reporting and recording of fly-tipping to ensure convenience
for residents and provide a robust and accurate collation of data.

Cost implication Implementation Term
This will be developed as part of the review Short Term
into the options.

Recommendation Three

To review and strengthen the current Education, Prevention and Communication
Strategy to include:-

i. the development of a Communications and Engagement Action Plan taking into
account different types of fly-tipping across rural and urban settings;

ii. Utilise social media to reach and engage with the public on a regular ‘light touch’
basis to ensure messages remain current.

iii. a more prevalent presence at shows/fetes/Eisteddfod.

Associated cost implications Implementation Term
In the development of this strategy, in conjunction Short Term

with the Marketing and Media Team a costed action
plan will be developed which will fit within the current
budget allocation for the services.

Page | 20
Tudalen 64



P N
Cyngor Sir Gé) ReVieW Of the
oy Couner Management of Fly Tipping within Carmarthenshire

Recommendation Four

To develop a co-ordinated approach with partners including robust arrangements to
work together in tackling the issue of fly-tipping.

Associated cost implications Implementation Term
CCC Staff Resource costs only Short Term

Recommendation Five

To increase the use of overt CCTV in identified hotspot areas.

Associated cost implications Implementation Term
Costs associated to the initial set up of CCTV Medium/Long Term
Costs of ongoing resources which would be
recovered through successful prosecutions.

The aim is to provide a CCTV approach which is
cost neutral.

Recommendation Six

To develop a Fly-tipping strategy which clearly sets out the Councils approach to
flytipping.

To include:

i.  a criteria of corrective actions for first time fly-tipping offenders — Enforcement
officer’s discretion on a case-by-case basis

ii. the clearance of fly-tipping incidents during the investigation phase

Associated cost implications Implementation Term
CCC Staff Resource costs only Medium Term

Recommendation Seven

To introduce a regular joint crime prevention / enforcement forum with Councillors,
Officers, partners and neighbouring local authorities (sharing best practice)

Associated cost implications Implementation Term
CCC Staff Resource costs only Medium Term

In order to monitor the progress of the recommendations, an action plan will be devised
and managed through the in house developed Performance Information Monitoring
System. A progress report will be monitored by the Place, Sustainability and Climate
Change Scrutiny Committee.

The outcomes of the recommendations will also be reported to the Cabinet and Council
within the Corporate Strategy Performance Monitoring Report.

Page | 21
Tudalen 65



P N
Cyngor Sir Gé) ReVieW Of the
oy Couner Management of Fly Tipping within Carmarthenshire
7.0 APPENDICES

Appendix A Data

Appendix B Process of the management of fly-tipping — Private Land
Appendix C Process of the management fly-tipping — Public Land
Appendix D Environment Agency — Flytipping Protocol Flowchart (Wales)

8.0 GLOSSARY

e Flymapper:
FlyMapper is a web-based tool for the field recording of fly-tipping incidents. FlyMapper
has two main components - a mobile application to record the location of incidents along
with a photo, and a website where data can be analysed in more detail. FlyMapper has
been developed as a practitioners tool for the recording and management of
substantiated fly-tipping incidents.

e TASK system:
Total repairs is a Job and financial management system which allows us to record and
manage all activities within jobs received to include scheduling works/planned
works/allocation and spend against each individual or group activity. Data is able to be
analysed to provide up to date and historical information, monitor and improve service
performance.

e APP system:
Civica APP Management system is a software solution which allows regulatory services
with Carmarthenshire to deliver responsive services, with case management at its core,
all regulatory services tasks is managed by one platform, the system reduces the level
of administration, boost productivity and in turn improves service quality, automated
process to improve efficiency, manages the enquiries received for regulatory services
within Carmarthenshire County Council.

e Firmstep:
Firmstep is our CRM system used within the contact centre setting which manages
interactions with customers and interfaces with total repairs to reduce administration in
providing information in relation to service requests allocated to each department.

o Fix my street:
FixMyStreet is a map-based website and app by mySociety that helps people in the
United Kingdom inform their local authority of problems needing their attention, such as
graffiti, dog fouling, potholes or broken streetlights, etc. Reports submitted to
FixMyStreet are also published on the web site.

CCTV - Closed Circuit Television

CRM - Customer Records Management
MoU — Memorandum of Understanding
NRW — Natural Resource Wales

FPN - Fixed Penalty Notices

Page | 22
Tudalen 66



Appendix A

Reported service requests over last
5 years (PP)

Private Land - Service Requests

Reported service requests over last
5 years (PP)

Public Land - Service Requests

450 2500
400
150 /—/\ 5000
300
250 1500
200
150 1000
100
50 500
O e
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 0 -
e Accumulation of Refuse  e====Fly Tipping Private 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
e Accumulation Of Refuse - Public Land e F |y Tipping - Public Land
. .
Number of actions related to waste Fly mapper recordings
SR over last 5 years
. . ©= Fly tipping Totals ©- Top 3 Waste Categories (Black Bag, Other Household waste & Furniture)
Public Land - Actions Added
5000
3500 4435
4500 ® 3915
3000 f 4000 3501 @
3270
2500 3500 A 2951
‘ 730 ©
2000 3000 + o)
20 &
1500 2500 pe
200 1570
1000 1
1500 g
500 __.__‘_—_——___—-——-—-_.___‘ o
439
0 50 %5 2%
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 [} f
0 ¢
s A ccumulation of refuse - Public Land Actions 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 201

s |y Tipping - Public Land Actions

Tudalen 67




P N

Cyngor Sir Gé)

Carmarthenshire
County Council

Review of the

Management of Fly Tipping within Carmarthenshire

Number of actions related to waste SR over last 5 years
2015-16 | 2016-17 | 2017-18 | 2018-19 | 2019-20
Wales 36259 38614 35434 35076 33542
Wales | North Wales 5730 5975 5764 5622 5035
North Wales Isle of Anglesey 1831 2010 1567 1712 1305
Gwynedd 645 624 461 323 633
Conwy 1078 1351 1540 1734 1162
Denbighshire 1120 1004 1207 665 700
Flintshire 898 800 774 1013 1067
Wrexham 158 186 215 175 168
Mid and South West Wales 10891 9214 8760 8836 8470
Mid and South West Wales |Powys 1019 1013 1436 1225 494
Ceredigion 390 252 240 156 159
Pembrokeshire 1199 1521 1323 1159 852
Carmarthenshire 972 1732 2939 3516 4111
Swansea 6040 3646 1766 1450 1450
Neath Port Talbot 1271 1050 1056 1330 1404
South East Wales 19638 23425 20910 20618 20037
South East Wales Bridgend 1086 1283 1604 1937 1788
Vale of Glamorgan 532 612 324 357 371
Rhondda Cynon Taff 4023 4252 3349 3247 2946
Merthyr Tydfil 1682 1970 2273 2909 1850
Caerphilly 2359 1992 1773 1949 2214
Blaenau Gwent 723 845 955 1167 1327
Torfaen 905 794 696 836 866
Monmouthshire 303 414 420 300 572
Newport 1811 3270 3588 2697 2725
Cardiff 6214 7993 5928 5219 5378
Page | 24

Tudalen 68



69 usfepny

Appendix B

Process map - Fly tipping private land

Council land

Input on APP

Refer to Environmental
enforcement team

Enforcement
considerations e.g FPN,
Formal warning,
prosecution etc

If hotspot, consider
support with
fencing/implementing
CCTV

Complaint received Private land

Input on APP

Allocate to officer

Contact client to discuss

Determine amount Refer to

/nature/position of waste NRW (MOU)

Evidence found Site visit if required — investigate
for details of perpetrator

Is waste of public health
Contact perpetrator concern
and interview

Officer confirm who is Contact identified landowner to
registered owner - contact land advice - NFA (unless political
owner

Not cleared Serve notice under If waste not cleared, consider works
Owner to clear land EPA/PDP in default and/or prosecution



Cyngor Sir Gé’

Carmarthenshire
County Council

Review of the

Management of Fly Tipping within Carmarthenshire

Process map - Fly tipping public land

Appendix C

1 2 3 4 5 6. Customer Service A... 7. Customer Service A... 8. Environment Hub O... 9. Environment Hub O... 10. Supervisor 11. Street Cleansing ... 12. Street Cleansing ...
509 50% 50% 50%
5 A JN > , @ >=8 > s TasK NE" V. . A
Firmstep Contact ves No ol ves =
Eform Centre
Start Customer R First Contact Poinfiwpls the issue on cougcil  1s the issue likely fo Contact Centre Updated on Task Is it safe for Raise job number Allocate job to team Attend Job Attend Job Job Ticket returned to
SSUl owned land be enforceable? A operatives to cle Hub
29 16. Environment Hub ... 17. Contractor 18 15
L L L 50% 2 50%
> > >
—)TE/?WME > o > s > TASK > >
Goto 6 Job Allocated to Contractors Attend job Go to 13 Stop
Contractor L
> >
35 19. Customer Service ... 20. Supervisor 21. Enforcement Officer 22. Enforcement Officer 23
— ) ") .
Email 5@ Yes - r _(,-‘ r _’“ _(‘.‘ >
Goto6 Input into APP System Issue Triaged and Review/Collect Request Clearance Stop
allocated Evidence
31 24. Customer Service ... 25. Customer Service ... 26
., >, i ~
> >
In No — g
Person
Goto6 Log issue on App Refer to Public Stop
1 Protection
=y
=
27. Environment Hub ... 28

0/ usrepny

50%

Social @
Media

Goto 6

> = >
Environment oz

ul
Go to 7

34. Head of Service

33
MPs/MSs © @

)
Hes " ',1 ‘ - @
Issue Passed onj Referred for position Go to 27
a4\ 36. Customer Service ... 37
> , > i >
Members/DSU, Contact =
Centre
Go to 33 wb Picked up by Contact  End of parallel branch
ntre
41 38 39

External
Apps

>
>

®

End of parallel branch



Cyngor Sir Gé)

Carmarthenshire
County Council

T/, usfepny

Review of the

Management of Fly Tipping within Carmarthenshire

enforcement

Environment Officer — quick guide

Flytipping protocol flow chart (Wales)

This document does mot replace the flytipping protocol but can be used to determine the appropriate response.

Reports of fytipping on public or private land

Abin bag or several bin bags of household
of commarcial waste

A pile of wasta about the sizo of a large
car boot (up to 0.5 m?)

Apile of waste about the size of avan
or up to 7.5 tonne tipper truck (0.5 to 10 m)

Apile of waste from a single large tipper
truck (20 m* [ appraximately 18 tonnes)

‘ Bonded asbestos ‘

‘ « 5 m’ fibrous asbestos ‘

‘ Clinical waste ‘

A pile of waste from several large tipper trucks
(each» 20 m*, appraximately 18 tonnes)

» 5 m’ fibrous asbestos

Pass to the local to igate and amrange
forthe removal and disposal of the waste.

Fass to the local authority to investigate and armange
forthe removal and disposal of the waste.

Where agreed locally the Environment Agency Wales
may camy out the investigation and enforcement
wheraa d offence or |
crime is suspected.

The Environment Agency Wales will only arrange
removal where there is no adequate response from
aresponsibie party and there is actual or imminent
threat to the environment, human heaith or looding.
W here ashestos is present, consider notifying the HSE.

Where cro

nytipping or kaeping of clinical waste Environment
AgencyWaleswill camy out investigation and
enforcement.

I reported to the Environment A gency Wales we will
usually cany out investigation and enforcament action,
axcept where the local authority wishes to take on
thework.

Environment Agency Wales will usually investigate
and take enforcement action.

Environment Agency Wales will only amange removal
where there is no adequate response from a
respansible party and thera is actual or imminant
threat to the environment, human heaith. where
asbestos is present, consider notifying the HSE.

Author: ED Focus Team
Document owner: Claire Winlow
Doc no: 536 06

Issue date: February 2008
Review by: May 2009
Version: 2

Appendix D

Drums, containers » 25 litres in total Environment Agency Wales are responsible for removal and disposal of

of potentially hazardous waste all drums on public beaches and drummed chemical waste (including
oil) empty or full fiytipped nearwatercourses or occupied buildings.
Environment Agency Wales will investigate fiytipped drums at other
|ocations and will remove whare the polluter cannot ba identifiad or
refuses o remove it. If on public land notify the local authority.

Tyres Environment Agency Wales will investigate where fiytipped within 10m of awatercourse. Where thera

is actual or imminent risk of pollution, ham to human health, and//or the waste would constitute a

refer to the local authority.

potential flood risk to main river, then Envirenment Agency Wales would consider removing. Otherwise

Where tyres are fiytipped or kept in quantities on land greater than 50m® Environment Agency Wales
will investigate and enforce. Envirenment Agency Wales will also consider removing where risk of
serious pollution is considered to be high.

Reports of flytipping and waste (including animal carcass) dumped in water or into tidal foreshore

Amenity issues only (ordinary
watercourse and main river)

Significant flood risk on an ordinary
watercourse

Risk of pollution to non-controlled water
(that is pond with no connections)

Significant floed risk on main river
or critical ordinary watercourse

Risk of pollution to controlled waters
(rivers, lakas)

Pass to the local authority to investigate and arange
for removal and disposal of the waste.

Where agread locally the Environment Agency Wales
may carry out enforcement where it is a frequently
repeated offence or organised crime is suspectad.

Environment Agency Wales will remove.

Environment Agency Wales may carmy out
investigation and enforcement action.

Reports of illegal waste sites — landfills, transfer stations, treatment sites

If reported to the local authority they will:

= inform the Environment Agency and their
planning department/ authority

® agres with us the best approach to enforcemant

* put onto Flycapture for removal and enforcement
action where incident is passed back to the
local authority.

If reported to the Environment Agency we will:

camy out appropriate investigation

inform the local authority

agrea the bast approach to enforcement with
them and the planning authority

include on NIRS ifwe take the l2ad in
investigation and enforcement.

Page | 27



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



Eitem Rhif 7

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU
LLE, CYNALIADWYEDD A NEWID HINSAWDD

21 GORFFENNAF 2023

DIWEDDARIAD AR GYFER YSTYRIED GORCHYMYN DIOGELU
MANNAU AGORED CYHOEDDUS YCHWANEGOL AR GYFER
GORCHMYNION CWN SIR GAERFYRDDIN

Pwrpas:

Ystyried y dull o ymdrin & Gorchmynion Diogelu Mannau Agored Cyhoeddus yn seiliedig ar y
dystiolaeth sydd ar gael ynghylch baw cwn ar gaeau chwaraeon.

GOFYNNIR I'R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU:-

Ystyried gwybodaeth a chymesuredd y dull arfaethedig o ymdrin & Gorchmynion Diogelu
Mannau Agored Cyhoeddus ar gyfer baw cwn ar gaeau chwaraeon.

Adolygu'r opsiwn a argymhellir i fynd i'r afael & materion Ymddygiad Gwrthgymdeithasol sy'n
Gysylltiedig & Chwn.

e Yr Awdurdod i ddrafftio ffurflen safonol a phecyn cymorth ar gyfer grwpiau chwaraeon /
cynghorau tref a chymuned i'w cefnogi ar gyfer gweithredu cymunedol.

e Darparu templed tystiolaeth i ddisgrifio natur a maint y broblem mewn lleoliadau penodol
i gefnogi gorchmynion ychwanegol a allai fod yn briodol.

¢ cyflwyno Hysbysiad Cosb Benodedig am y drosedd o beidio a gallu glanhau ar él eich ci
mewn mannau cyhoeddus.

Y Rhesymau

Argymhellwyd yng nghyfarfod Craffu Lle, Cynaliadwyedd a Newid Hinsawdd ar 24 Tachwedd
2022 i gyflwyno gwaharddiad ledled y Sir o gWwn yn mynd i gae chwaraeon wedi'i farcio a
chyflwyno Hysbysiad Cosb Benodedig am y drosedd o beidio & gallu glanhau ar él eich ci. Mae'r
adroddiad hwn yn rhoi diweddariad i'r aelodau a'r opsiynau sydd ar gael i'rawdurdod yn seiliedig
ar gyngor cyfreithiol.

YR AELOD CABINET SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO:
Y Cynghorydd Aled Vaughan-Owen -
Aelod Cabinet dros Newid Hinsawdd, Datgarboneiddio a Chynaliadwyedd

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth:- Swyddi: Rhifau ffén: / Cyfeiriadau E-bost:
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: Pennaeth Dros Dro Gwasanaethau | 01267 224531

Amgylcheddol a Gwastraff. DWJohn@sirgar.gov.uk
Daniel W John

01267 225806

Awdur yr Adroddiad: MJRoberts@sirgar.gov.uk

_ Swyddog Polisi Ansawdd yr
Michael Roberts Amgylchedd Lleol

D N
Cyngor Sir Gﬁ) Tudalen 73
Carmarthenshire
County Council




EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

PLACE, SUSTAINABILITY & CLIMATE CHANGE
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

21ST JULY 2023

UPDATE FOR THE CONSIDERATION OF ADDITIONAL PUBLIC

SPACE PROTECTION ORDER (PSPO) FOR
CARMARTHENSHIRE DOG ORDERS

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

SUMMARY REPORT.

On the 24th November 2022 the Scrutiny Committee recommended the
introduction of an additional Countywide Public Spaces Protection Order to
ban dogs from a defined sports pitches located within the county and the
introduction of a fixed penalty notice for the offence of not having the means
of cleaning up after their dog.

A review has been undertaken to gather the existing data of the problems
and extent of dog related anti — social behaviour to support the introduction
of an exclusion order of dogs from Marked sports pitches, the data gathered
shows the number of complaints received in 2022 — 23 was just 209, and
no complaints were received of dog related ASB occurring on playing fields
or sports pitches.

A review was also undertaken of the previous consultations to see how
many respondents raised the issue. It shows that a number of respondents
have raised the issue over the years, although the number of responses
which do so is quite low. It should be noted that this historical evidence is a
number of years old and therefore of limited value.

Current data held by Carmarthenshire County Council.
The table below show the number of Fixed Penalty Notices and

prosecutions taken by the authority since the introduction of the Public
Spaces Protection Order 2016.

D N
Cyngor sir Gar Yo Tudalen 74
Carmarthenshire
County Council




1.5

Table A: No of FPN'’s and Prosecutions taken by Carmarthenshire County
Council.

PSPO Fixed Penalty Notices issued & Prosecutions

35
30

25
20
15
10 I
: 1 |
— [ |

0

W Dog Fouling FPN's
M Exclusion FPN's
Prosecutions (PSPO)

W Dog Fouling FPN's  m Exclusion FPN's Prosecutions (PSPO)

Table B: Number of complaints received by CCC for the 2021/22 7
2022/23 period.

Dog Fouling Complaints received by CCC

300
250
200
150
100
50
0

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

mmm Dog Fouling Complaints 264 209
== Sports Pitches Complaints 0 0
mmm Dog Fouling Complaints — e====Sports Pitches Complaints

N.B. No warning letter / community protection notices have been
issued by the authority for dog related anti-social behaviour issues.

Legal Advice has stated that any PSPO needs to be evidence based, and
a proportionate response to the problems which are occurring. From a legal
perspective it is deemed that we have insufficient evidence at present to
sufficiently demonstrate that the introduction of a County Wide PSPO to
address this problem is proportionate.

Cyngor Sir Gﬁa Tudalen 75
Carmarthenshire
County Council




1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

Also, at present the authority does not have sufficient data on all community
owned playing fields / sports pitches currently used in the county of
Carmarthenshire. Further work will be required to identify these assets
working with communities to identify areas that are maintained privately but
are accessible to the public.

Based on the current available evidence gathered, and considering the

proportionality of our options the recommendation is:

e To engage with communities and sports groups to facilitate further
evidence gathering through the provision of a toolkit.

e Maintain the use of existing powers to address the current problems.

e Working with the community to develop site specific PSPO’s based on
evidence and proportionality to address the issue, once evidence is
gathered and provided by the community or sports group.

A community proforma and toolkit is being produced for sports groups / town
and community councils etc to support for community action in relation to
dog fouling and provide an evidence template to capture the nature and
extent of the problem to support any additional orders that may be
appropriate.

The Toolkit will allow sports Groups / Town and Community Councils to
records incidents as part of the evidence gathering electronically (epicollect
system) or using paper audit sheets.

The Local Environmental Quality Team will provide guidance and support
to all the Sports Groups / Town & Community Councils who want to
undertake the evidence gathering exercise.

D N
Cyngor Sir Gar M Tudalen 76
Carmarthenshire
County Council




2. SUGGESTED NEXT STEPS

1. Develop a community toolkit and evidence gathering proforma to support
community groups and sports associations to tackle the problem of dog
fouling.

2. Encourage sports Groups / stakeholders to provide greater intelligence to
evidence the extent of the dog related anti-social behaviour to aid the
enforcement team to undertake targeted action and develop site specific
PSPOs based on proportionality.

3. Introduce a new Fixed Penalty Notice for the offence of not having the means
of cleaning up after their dog in public spaces.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? No

D N
Cyngor Sir Gar M Tudalen 77
Carmarthenshire
County Council




IMPLICATIONS

| confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors / Heads
of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with this report:

Signed:
Policy, Crime | Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
& Disorder Management | Implications Assets
and Issues
Equalities

Yes Yes None None None None None

1. Policy, Crime & Disorder and Equalities

This matter falls within Community Safety and Public Health Policies and Initiatives. These
proposals will support the Council’s aims with regard to reducing environmental Crime and

Safeguarding Public Health.

2. Legal

Expansion of the PSPO (Dog Control Orders) is not a legal duty but is a discretionary
power. However, where appropriate and there are benefits in extending the current order,
then this would be done in compliance with all the relevant legislation and in consultation
with the Council’s Legal Services Department

CABINET MEMBER PORTFOLIO HOLDER
AWARE/CONSULTED

YES

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

THERE ARE NONE

Cyngor Sir

D N
j’ Tudalen 78
Carmarthenshire
County Council




Eitem Rhif 8

Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU
LLE, CYNALIADWYEDD A NEWID HINSAWDD

21 GORFFENNAF 2023

ADOLYGIAD O BARCIO AM DDIM

Y Pwrpas: Mae'r Cyngor wedi darparu cynlluniau parcio am ddim ers sawl blwyddyn i gefnogi
canol trefi. Mae'r adroddiad hwn yn rhoi gwybodaeth i'r aelodau am effaith y cynlluniau o
safbwynt allbynnau a refeniw. Mae'n darparu sawl opsiwn i benderfynu yn eu cylch.

Gofynnir i'r Pwyllgor Craffu:-

Adolygu ac asesu'r wybodaeth sydd wedi ei chynnwys yn yr Adroddiad a darparu
unrhyw argymhellion, sylwadau, neu gyngor i'r Aelod Cabinet cyn i'r adroddiad gael ei
ystyried gan y Cabinet.

Gofynnir i'r Cabinet ystyried yr opsiynau canlynol:

. Cadw'r pum diwrnod parcio am ddim ar gyfer digwyddiadau yn unol &'r polisi presennol a
rhoi'r gorau i'r cynnig parcio am ddim presennol sy'n rhoi cyfnodau parcio am ddim i drefi
am oriau penodol ac ar ddyddiau penodol yr wythnos neu ddarparu cyllideb.

. Cadw'r pum diwrnod parcio am ddim ar gyfer digwyddiadau yn unol &'r polisi presennol a
rhoi'r gorau i'r cynnig parcio am ddim presennol sy'n rhoi cyfnodau parcio am ddim i drefi
am oriau penodol ac ar ddyddiau penodol yr wythnos neu gyflwyno parcio am ddim am
awr a darparu cyllideb i gefnogi hynny.

. Cadw'r pum diwrnod parcio am ddim ar gyfer digwyddiadau yn unol &'r polisi presennol,
rhoi'r gorau i'r cynnig parcio am ddim presennol sy'n rhoi cyfnodau parcio am ddim i drefi
am oriau penodol ac ar ddyddiau penodol yr wythnos a chaniatau i'r timau AGB o drefi
allweddol ddarparu cynnig parcio am ddim yn amodol ar i'r timau AGB gyllido'n llawn y
refeniw a gaiff ei golli a gyfrifir gan yr awdurdod.

. Cadw'r pum diwrnod parcio am ddim ar gyfer digwyddiadau yn unol &'r polisi presennol,
rhoi'r gorau i'r cynnig parcio am ddim presennol a darparu dyraniad cyllideb penodedig i
drefi bennu eu cyfnodau parcio am ddim eu hunain yn unol a'r gyllideb a ddarperir a'r
refeniw a gaiff ei golli a gyfrifir gan yr awdurdod.

. Ailgyflwyno codi tal safonol i fynd i'r afael yn rhannol a'r pwysau cyfredol ar y gyllideb a
chael gwared ar yr holl gynigion parcio am ddim.

P
Cyngor Sir Gé)

Tudalen 79

Carmarthenshire
County Council




Y rhesymau: Nid yw'r cymorth refeniw ar gyfer y cynnig parcio am ddim presennol ar gael
bellach.

Ymgynghorir a'r Pwyllgor Craffu er mwyn cael sylwadau i lunio cyflwyniad i'r Cabinet ei
ystyried.

Angen i'r Cabinet wneud penderfyniad OES
Angen i'r Cyngor wneud penderfyniad NAC OES

YR AELOD CABINET SY'N GYFRIFOL AM Y PORTFFOLIO: -

Y Cynghorydd Edward Thomas. Aelod Cabinet dros Wasanaethau Trafnidiaeth, Gwastraff a
Seilwaith.

Y Gyfarwyddiaeth: Swyddi: Ffon: 01267 228150
Enw Pennaeth y Gwasanaeth: | Pennaeth Priffyrdd a Cyfeiriadau e-bost:
S.G. Pilliner Thrafnidiaeth SGPilliner@sirgar.gov.uk
Awdur yr Adroddiad: S.G.
Pilliner
P N

Cyngor Sir Gar P Tudalen 80

Carmarthenshire
County Council




EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

PLACE, SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE CHANGE
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

21ST JULY 2023

FREE PARKING REVIEW

The Council has supported town centres with the provision of free parking schemes for several
years. This report provides members with information that considers the impact of the schemes
from an output and revenue perspective. It provides several options for decision.

Car parks serve extremely important environmental, economic and social objectives that
include:

. Enabling the expeditious movement of traffic*

. Reducing congestion

. Improving air quality

. Managing the environment

. Making towns attractive to visitors/tourists

. Stimulating and supporting economic activity and retail spend in town centres.
. Stimulating sustainable travel

Behavioural changes and the growth of internet shopping continues to impact on town centres.
The stimulus introduced to support free car parking has not changed parking behaviours and
this is consistent with the findings of previous research. It is the town centre offer that
influences demand. Parking charges are a low proportion of total annual car operating
expenditure for a motorist.

The two biggest concerns of motorists from the findings of recent survey work undertaken by
the RAC are the cost of fuel which takes up a greater proportion of the operating cost of a car.
Motorists are also more concerned about the condition of the highway. Parking charges feature
on the bottom quartile of motorists’ concerns.

The existing budget pressures caused by a reduction in income are being mitigated by
reductions in expenditure on car parks and other highways and transportation related
expenditure which impacts on the standard and appeal of car parks and the town centres. It is
also mitigated by an increase in revenue from the camera enforcement. Both are not
sustainable.

There are options for consideration in the report as set out in the recommendations.

DETAILED REPORT ATTACHED? YES

P
Cyngor Sir Gé)

Tudalen 81

Carmarthenshire
County Council




IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with
this report:

Signed: S.G. Pilliner Head of Transportation and Highways
Policy, Crime & | Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical
Disorder and Management | Implications | Assets
Equalities Issues

NONE NONE YES NONE NONE NONE YES

1. Finance

Parking income is not achieving budgeted target with income for off street parking forecast
to be circa £817k below the target, this is partly offset by an increase in on street income
from enforcement which is not sustainable in the medium term. Options two three and four
all have a financial implication ranging from a minimum of £219k to £409k.

2. Physical Assets

The continued reduction in maintenance expenditure is leading to a deterioration in the
parking asset.

CABINET MEMBER PORTFOLIO HOLDER(S) YES
AWARE

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

There are none

P
Cyngor Sir Gé)

Carmarthenshire
County Council

Tudalen 82




Free Parking Review

1.0 The Council has supported town centres with the provision of free parking
schemes for several years There are two schemes in operation. The first scheme
provides town centres with five free parking days were annum to support events in
towns, the second scheme as introduce at the end of 2018 and provides towns with
free parking periods for set hours and days of the week. The periods vary by
town. This report provides members with information that considers the impact of
the schemes from an output and revenue perspective.

1.1 The Council has twenty-seven pay and display car parks across villages and
towns to provide off road parking that adds value to towns and villages. The car
parks serve extremely important environmental, economic and social objectives that
include:

¢ Enabling the expeditious movement of traffic*

e Reducing congestion

e Improving air quality

e Managing the environment

¢ Making towns attractive to visitors/tourists

e Stimulating and supporting economic activity and retail spend in town
centres.

e Stimulating sustainable travel

* This is a statutory obligation

1.2 The objectives help deliver a balanced transport solution for town centres. This is
particularly important for Carmarthenshire because like most rural and coastal areas,
the visitor economy is important and generally there is a high level of car ownership.

1.3 Town Centres across the UK are changing, the COVID pandemic has stimulated
behavioural change and has affected the way people shop, (which is impacting on
the retail sector) and the way we work.

1.4 The RAC Report on Motoring 2022 confirmed that hybrid working has resulted in
less people working in offices around town centres and people using their car less.
Forty one percent of people now commute five days a week by car compared to forty
nine percent prior to the pandemic, thirteen percent commute four days a week up
from eleven percent prior to the pandemic. The number that commute between one
and three days in the average week has risen from seventeen percent to thirty six
percent .

(1)  NimbleFins — Insurance Analyst — Average Cost of Running a Car UK 270223 Danev — Carplusuk 280922
(2) RAC Motoring Report2022
(3) ONS Retail sales index internet sales

Tudalen 83




How many days a week do drivers use a car to get to and from work?

#
o
5

ELE

o
m

10 -

Before the
5 pondemic
0 573

Between 1and & days 0 week 5 doys o week
2 doys 0 week

N

1.5 Similarly, the continued growth in internet shopping has moved spend from the
more traditional retail outlets.

1.6 The matter of car parking charges can often stimulate debate and opinion when
charges are introduced or increased.

1.7 Parking charges represent a small proportion of the annual operating costs of a
car. The costs of running a car with an average of 7,604 miles per annum is typically
47 pence per mile. The average motorists will spend around £44 per annum on
parking charges. This represents 1.23% of the annual running costs of a car. (')
Generally, motorists do not consider parking chargers as a major influence when
visiting towns. This was confirmed by the most recent RAC Report on Motoring.

1.8 The RAC report identified that the two biggest concerns of drivers was the rising
cost of fuel (55%) followed by the state of local roads (46%) with the cost of parking
at (12%). Parking was in the lowest quartile of twenty areas of concern raised by
drivers. @ The report also identified that eighty one percent of drivers would find it
very difficult to adjust their lifestyles to being without a car. This figure rises to eighty
eight percent in rural areas.

1.9 The Covid pandemic has had a disruptive impact on the retail sector across the
UK. Sales volumes continued to fall from January 2020 to January 2023. The
proportion of retail sales via the internet grew throughout the pandemic, it has fallen
back from a peak of circa thirty eight percent in November 2020 to circa twenty
seven percent in January 2023. @) Overall retail sales, however, have continued to
decline.

1.10 Such changes have had an impact on car park use in town centres across the
UK. Please refer to Charts One and Two overleaf.

(1)  NimbleFins — Insurance Analyst — Average Cost of Running a Car UK 270223 Danev — Carplusuk 280922
(2) RAC Motoring Report2022
(3) ONS Retail sales index internet sales

Tudalen 84




Chart One.

Internet sales as a percentage of total retail sales (ratio) (%)

%
40

30

20

10

0

v =4

- & N 9 .l

s ¢ o> & g
D T -2 v
== Internet sales as a percentage of total retail sales (ratio) (%)
Source:
Chart Two.
Figure 1: Retail sales volumes continue a downward trend since summer
2021
Wolume sales, seasonally adjusted, Great Britain, January 2020 to January 2023

120 Index 2019=100
110
100 i —
90

80

70

60

g 1

Jan 20 May 20 Sep 20 Jan 21 May 21 Sep 21 Jan 22 May 22 Sep 22 Jan 23

—— Three-rmonth — se—lonth

Source: Office for National Statistics - Monthly Business Survey, Retail Sales Inquiry

(1) NimbleFins — Insurance Analyst — Average Cost of Running a Car UK 270223 Danev — Carplusuk 280922
(2) RAC Motoring Report2022
(3) ONS Retail sales index internet sales

Tudalen 85




1.11. A review of car park use across Carmarthenshire has been undertaken. The
reviewed covered the period from January 2018 to January 2023. A summary of the
analysis of ticket and sales data for the period from 2018 to date follows. Chart three
illustrates the total number and the change in the number of tickets sold in car parks
across towns. Chart four illustrates the impact on income.

Chart Three — Tickets Issued

Car Park All Tickets Issued Inc Free Tickets

1,200,000 -50.00%
-45.00%
1,000,000 -40.00%
_ 0,
800,000 35.00%
-30.00%
600,000 -25.00%
-20.00%
400,000 -15.00%
_ o,
200,000 10.00%
-5.00%
. Bl u= B 0.00%
Ammanford Carmarthen Llandeilo Llandovery Llanelli Newcastle St Clears
Emlyn
I Year 2018 mmmm Year 2022 == Difference %
Chart Four — Income
Income
2,000,000 -40.00%
1,800,000 -35.00%
1,600,000
-30.00%
1,400,000
1,200,000 -25.00%
1,000,000 -20.00%
800,000 15.00%
600,000
-10.00%
400,000
200,000 J. -5.00%
0 | 0 - | 0.00%
Ammanford Carmarthen Llandeilo Llandovery Llanelli Newcastle St Clears

Emlyn

BN Year 2018  mmmmm Year 2022 == Difference %

(1) NimbleFins — Insurance Analyst — Average Cost of Running a Car UK 270223 Danev — Carplusuk 280922
(2) RAC Motoring Report2022
(3) ONS Retail sales index internet sales

Tudalen 86




1.12 The variations in income by town reflect the wider parking policy considerations
relating to town centres including the local and visitor demographic, population and
the different socio-economic characteristics of each town across the County. Local
services on town centre streets depend on demand in the local economy which is
driven by income and the mix of jobs people undertake.

1.14 From the four charts it is evident that the behavioural change caused and
stimulated by the pandemic continues to have an impact on trade and as transport is
a derived demand, it has impacted on car park demand as evidenced above. Parking
demand for each town fell from the levels attained in 2018 when compared to 2022.
The fall in demand for each town is summarised in Table One below:

Table One.

Fall in Demand Fall in Demand

2018 to 2022 Tickets 2018 to 2022 Revenue
Ammanford -30.18% -34.42%
Carmarthen -32.62% -25.79%
Llandeilo -15.2% -11.9%
Llandovery -12.21% -6.27%
Llanelli -47.03% -36.72%
Newcastle Emlyn -38.63% -35.73%
St Clears -28.46% -19.05%

1.15 The Council has introduced interventions to help stimulate the post pandemic
recovery of town centres with the assistance of both Welsh, UK Government funding
and further authority support. The Welsh Government funding was provided at the
end of 2018 and ceased in 2022, it enabled the Council to introduce periods of free
car parking for each town. The specific periods adopted for each town were
determined by the respective representatives from each town relative to the available
allocated budget and proportion of total income. Each town selected different
periods. The detail is set out in Table Two below:

Table Two.

Ammanford Monday to Wednesday 10 a.m. to 2 p.m.
Carmarthen Tuesdays and Thursdays 3:30 p.m. to 6:00 p.m.
Llandeilo Monday to Wednesday 10 a.m. to 2 p.m.
Llandovery Monday to Wednesday 10 a.m. to 2 p.m.
Llanelli Monday and Tuesdays 10 a.m. to 4 :00p.m.
Newcastle Emlyn | Monday to Wednesday 10 a.m. to 2 p.m.

St Clears Monday to Wednesday 10 a.m. to 2 p.m.

1.16 Further analysis of demand patterns of car park use by day of week and town
for the period from 2018 to the end of 2022 is set out in Charts five to eleven that
follow:

(1)  NimbleFins — Insurance Analyst — Average Cost of Running a Car UK 270223 Danev — Carplusuk 280922
(2) RAC Motoring Report2022
(3) ONS Retail sales index internet sales

Tudalen 87




Chart Five - Ammanford

Free Parking Period : Monday to Wednesday 10 a.m. to 2 p.m.

Total Tickets by Day and Calendar Year

Calendar Year ®2018 ®2019 © 2020 #2021 @2022
60K

50K

40K

30K

Tickets

20K

10K

oK
Maon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun

Day

Tolal Cash by Day and Calendar Year
Calendar Year 2010 @2019 @ 2020 $2021 @2022

40K

Cash

Kon ue Wied Thu Fr sat Sun
Day

(1) NimbleFins — Insurance Analyst — Average Cost of Running a Car UK 270223 Danev — Carplusuk 280922
(2) RAC Motoring Report2022
(3) ONS Retail sales index internet sales

Tudalen 88



https://app.powerbi.com/MobileRedirect.html?action=OpenReport&reportObjectId=c2b1a6b7-ff24-49be-a513-1eb2634990d8&ctid=319baa9a-8e8b-4d1e-86ae-f76a403f1c84&reportPage=ReportSection57c65f5c11a8a7c470d7&pbi_source=copyvisualimage

Chart Six - Carmarthen

Free Parking Period : Tuesdays and Thursdays 3:30 p.m. to 6:00 p.m.

Total Tickets by Day and Calendar Year

Calendar Year ®2015 ®2019 ©2020 ®2021 @2022

150K
100K

50K

Tickets

Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun
Day
Tolal Cash by Day and Calendar Year
Calendar Year #2010 @2019 82020 #2021 @2022
1114
3
LI
2K
5
o]
o
1114
WK
ELDE
EDK
L ) w Thu Sat S
Day

(1) NimbleFins — Insurance Analyst — Average Cost of Running a Car UK 270223 Danev — Carplusuk 280922
(2) RAC Motoring Report2022
(3) ONS Retail sales index internet sales
Tudalen 89



https://app.powerbi.com/MobileRedirect.html?action=OpenReport&reportObjectId=c2b1a6b7-ff24-49be-a513-1eb2634990d8&ctid=319baa9a-8e8b-4d1e-86ae-f76a403f1c84&reportPage=ReportSection57c65f5c11a8a7c470d7&pbi_source=copyvisualimage

Chart Seven — Llandeilo

Free Parking Period : Monday to Wednesday 10 a.m. to 2 p.m.

Total Tickets by Day and Calendar Year

Calendar Year ®2015 @2019 ©2020 ®2021 @2022

20K
15K
a
T
£
]
1ok
5K
0K
Man Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun
Day

Tolal Cash by Day and Calendar Year
Calendar Year @2010 @2019 @ 2020 82021 @2022

Cash

Mon ue Wied Thu Fr Sat Sun
Day

(1) NimbleFins — Insurance Analyst — Average Cost of Running a Car UK 270223 Danev — Carplusuk 280922
(2) RAC Motoring Report2022
(3) ONS Retail sales index internet sales

Tudalen 90



https://app.powerbi.com/MobileRedirect.html?action=OpenReport&reportObjectId=c2b1a6b7-ff24-49be-a513-1eb2634990d8&ctid=319baa9a-8e8b-4d1e-86ae-f76a403f1c84&reportPage=ReportSection57c65f5c11a8a7c470d7&pbi_source=copyvisualimage

Chart Eight — Llandovery

Free Parking Period : Monday to Wednesday 10 a.m. to 2 p.m.

Total Tickets by Day and Calendar Year

Calendar Year ®2012 @2019 © 2020 ®2021 @2022
12K

10K

—_
* \/
[
]
X
e
Foek
K
)

Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun
Day
Tolal Cash by Day and Calendar Year
Calendar Year @2018 @2019 @ 2020 2021 @2022
12K
0K
£BK
=
]
-]
2]
LEK
e —
£4E
£2K
Ilon i Wied Thu Sun
Day

(1) NimbleFins — Insurance Analyst — Average Cost of Running a Car UK 270223 Danev — Carplusuk 280922

(2) RAC Motoring Report2022
(3) ONS Retail sales index internet sales

Tudalen 91



https://app.powerbi.com/MobileRedirect.html?action=OpenReport&reportObjectId=c2b1a6b7-ff24-49be-a513-1eb2634990d8&ctid=319baa9a-8e8b-4d1e-86ae-f76a403f1c84&reportPage=ReportSection57c65f5c11a8a7c470d7&pbi_source=copyvisualimage

Chart Nine — Llanelli

Free Parking Period : Monday and Tuesdays 10 a.m. to 4 :00p.m.

Total Tickets by Day and Calendar Year

Calendar Year ®2015 @2019 © 2020 #2021 @®2022
80K

Tickets

20K

0K
Mon Tue

60K
40K

Thu Fri Sat Sun
Day

Tolal Cash by Day and Calendar Year
Calendar Year @2010 @2019 @ 2020 B2021 2022
ETHIK

Cash

7\

Day

(1) NimbleFins — Insurance Analyst — Average Cost of Running a Car UK 270223 Danev — Carplusuk 280922

(2) RAC Motoring Report2022
(3) ONS Retail sales index internet sales

Tudalen 92



https://app.powerbi.com/MobileRedirect.html?action=OpenReport&reportObjectId=c2b1a6b7-ff24-49be-a513-1eb2634990d8&ctid=319baa9a-8e8b-4d1e-86ae-f76a403f1c84&reportPage=ReportSection57c65f5c11a8a7c470d7&pbi_source=copyvisualimage

Chart Ten - Newcastle Emlyn

Free Parking Period : Monday to Wednesday 10 a.m. to 2 p.m.

Calendar Year ®2015 @2019 © 2020 ®2021 @2022

20K
15K
2
@
x
=
= 1ok
5K
0K
Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun
Day

Tolal Cash by Day and Calendar Year
Calendar Year #2070 @2019 @ 2020 @2021 @2022

Cash
¥

Day

(1) NimbleFins — Insurance Analyst — Average Cost of Running a Car UK 270223 Danev — Carplusuk 280922
(2) RAC Motoring Report2022
(3) ONS Retail sales index internet sales

Tudalen 93



https://app.powerbi.com/MobileRedirect.html?action=OpenReport&reportObjectId=c2b1a6b7-ff24-49be-a513-1eb2634990d8&ctid=319baa9a-8e8b-4d1e-86ae-f76a403f1c84&reportPage=ReportSection57c65f5c11a8a7c470d7&pbi_source=copyvisualimage

Chart Eleven - St Clears

Free Parking Period : Monday to Wednesday 10 a.m. to 2 p.m.

Total Tickets by Day and Calendar Year

Calendar Year @2016 ®2019 © 2020 #2021 @2022

4K

Tickets

0K
Wed Thu Fri Sat
Day

Tolal Cash by Day and Calendar Year

Calendar Year @2010 @2012 @ 202 2021 2022

£2K

Cash

Day

1.17 In addition to the Welsh Government funding for free parking periods, the
Council has continued to support five free parking days per year to support events
within each town centre outside of the peak Christmas trading period. The reduction
in Government funding support of £217,000 for the free parking days scheme has,

(1)  NimbleFins — Insurance Analyst — Average Cost of Running a Car UK 270223 Danev — Carplusuk 280922
(2) RAC Motoring Report2022
(3) ONS Retail sales index internet sales
Tudalen 94



https://app.powerbi.com/MobileRedirect.html?action=OpenReport&reportObjectId=c2b1a6b7-ff24-49be-a513-1eb2634990d8&ctid=319baa9a-8e8b-4d1e-86ae-f76a403f1c84&reportPage=ReportSection57c65f5c11a8a7c470d7&pbi_source=copyvisualimage

in effect created an additional budget pressure that is not currently funded. It can be
seen from Charts five to eleven above, the free parking period offer has not
generated additional demand, the demand distribution has followed the same pattern
of demand from 2018 to 2022.

1.18 The extent of behavioural change in society has been sustained. Consequently,
the free parking stimulus does not appear to be having a material impact on
consumer behaviour. In exploring the trends further, the rural towns appear to have
recovered with people shopping locally however the principal towns continue to be
impacted. The extent of the impact shows some correlation between the increased
trend in internet retail sales with a mean average growth of thirty percent and the
reduction in income from parking of circa thirty four percent in Ammanford, twenty six
percent in Carmarthen and thirty seven percent in Llanelli.

1.19 The reduction in income from car parks is causing an overall budget pressure.
The pressure has been mitigated by a reduction in maintenance spend and an
increase in income from mobile on-street parking offences as demonstrated in Table
Three overleaf. Both mitigation measures are not sustainable. The impact of the
mitigation measures is illustrated in Table Three overleaf:

Table Three:

Comparison of income and maintenance expenditure 2018 to 2022

Budget Item 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 +f-
PCN Income with Mobile Enforcement |-£311,344 |-£307,061 |-£212,357 |-£387,212 |-£652,210 | £340,866
Maintenance Expenditure £257,831 | £258478 | £221,927 | £172,440 | £182,101 |-£105,730

1.20 The analysis of income performance against the budget income target is set out
in Table Four below:

Table Four

Analysis of parking fees for the Place & Infrastructure department

2018/19 201920 2020/21 202122 202223
Account Code Actual  Budgeted | Actual Budgeted | Actual Budgeted | Actual Budgeted | Forecast Budgeted
£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
8523 Parking Fees -2,410,367 -3,005,113 (-2,233,409 -2,760,277 |-589,252 -2,793,703 |-1,859,563 -2,644,287 |-2,007,261 -2,838,523
shartfall 594,746 526,868 2,204,451 784,724 831,262
WG covid claim reimbursement -1,708,047 -674,521
496,404 110,203

The net contribution from off Street Parking to support services is set out in Table
Five.

(1)  NimbleFins — Insurance Analyst — Average Cost of Running a Car UK 270223 Danev — Carplusuk 280922
(2) RAC Motoring Report2022
(3) ONS Retail sales index internet sales

Tudalen 95




Table Five

Car Parks Off Street - Net Contribution

Financial Year 201819 2019/20 2020/21 202122 | 2022/23*
MNet Contribution™®* -£658,9539 |-£670,606 |-£5316,410 |-£375,918 |-£576,724
* Forecast

** Net Contribution Income - Expenditure

The net contribution funds essential highways and transportation services.

1.21 Unfortunately, meeting the demands of all, in a challenging economic climate, is
extremely difficult if not impossible. Free parking is often sighted by town centre
traders as the panacea for recovery. Previous studies and pilot projects have shown
that it is the extent of the overall town offer that attracts visitors to town and parking
charges that are set at a reasonable level, have little bearing on a decision to visit.
This is demonstrated by the trends of parking as illustrated in Charts five to eleven
above.

1.22 The current budget position is unfortunately not sustainable. This is an
important consideration for the overall Highways and Transport budget where there
is continued pressure on key ares such as Highway Maintenance, Public and School
Transport and the Parking service.

1.23 Whilst Parking fees will go up by five percent as part of the budget , the net
impact on the budget does not bridge the budget shortfall to any great extent.
Assuming there is no elasticity of demand and parking followed the same patterns of
demand as the current financial year, there would still be a budget shortfall in income
of circa £730,000. It would lead to a vicious circle where the condition of the parking
stock, similar to highways would continue to deteriorate which in turn would not
promote a positive experience to visitors.

1.24 Every neighbouring authority has increased the level of parking charges as part
of their 2023/24 budget setting process.

1.25 Nevertheless, an option of introducing free parking for one hour to replace the
current free parking offer that was introduced at the end of 2018 whilst retaining the
five free parking days for events has been considered. The current free parking
period offer has a net cost of circa £219k per annum (excluding events days) , this is
based on tickets sales for the current free parking offer by town. There is no longer a
budget to fund which is compounding the budget pressure.

(1)  NimbleFins — Insurance Analyst — Average Cost of Running a Car UK 270223 Danev — Carplusuk 280922
(2) RAC Motoring Report2022
(3) ONS Retail sales index internet sales

Tudalen 96




Table Six

. . Total Net Revenue
B . Free Tickets | Ticket Cost Revenue
Town Free Parking Period Foregone Per
Issued Foregone N
annum

Ammanford Monday to Wednesday 10 a.m. to 2 p.m. 47,256 1.2 47,256.00

Carmarthen Tuesdays and Thursdays 3:30 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. 30,232 2.4 60,464.00

Llandeilo Monday to Wednesday 10 a.m. to 2 p.m. 17,087 1.2 17,087.00

Llandovery Monday to Wednesday 10 a.m. to 2 p.m. 7,404 1.2 7,404.00

Llanelli Monday and Tuesdays 10 a.m. to 4 :00p.m. 40,752 2.2 74,712.00

Mewcastle Emlyn | Monday to Wednesday 10 a.m. to 2 p.m. 10,454 1.2 10,454.00

St Clears Monday to Wednesday 10 a.m. to 2 p.m. 1,641 1.2] 1,641.00
* Excluding VAT

219,018.00

1.26 Should Cabinet wish to consider an alternative option for example free parking
for one hour for each day the financial implications have been evaluated and
summarised as follows:

Table Seven

) ) ) Percentage |Net Ticket Cost] Ticket Cost Net Ticket Cost

Free Parking| Ticket | Ticket Sales Ticket Sales Percenatge Total Revenue

Town . Revenue Revenue Revenue Revenue

Period Cost One Hour Two Hours Revenue Foregone Foregone

Foregone Foregone Foregone Foregone
Ammanford 1 Hour £ 0.90 82,235 100% £ 61,676 52,332 | £ 1.20 33% £ 14,391 96,626
Carmarthen®™ |1 Hour £ 0.70 48,997 100% £ 34,298 382,651 | £ 2.80 3% f 105,229 154,226
Llandeilo 1 Hour £ 0.90 20,008 100% £ 26,107 34,795 | £ 1.20 3% £ 9,569 38,577
Llandovery 1 Hour £ 0.90 18,589 100% £ 16,730 19,116 | £ 1.20 33% £ 5,257 23,846
Llanelli 1 Hour £ 140 56,443 100% £ 79,020 38,795 | £ 1.80 33% £ 10,669 . 67,112
Newcastle Emlyn |1 Hour £ 0.90 17,130 100% £ 15,417 23,000 | £ 1.20 33% £ 6,325 23,455
St Clears 1 Hour £ 0.90 5,008 100% £ 4,507 2,604 | £ 1.20 33% £ 711 5,749

*Excluding VAT

** Minimum Charge Band is 2 Hours for all car parks except 5t Peters £ 237,756 £ 409,590

1.27 Introducing a free parking ticket for one hour would result in a loss of net
revenue of £237,756 for the absolute value of one hour ticket sales. However, there
is likely to be significant displacement of two-hour ticket sales as people shorten their
stays. Applying a conservative estimate of thirty three percent; displacement the
total net loss of income would equate to £409,590. People are likely to modify
their visit and will stay for a shorter period in town and potentially spend less.

2.0 Conclusions

2.1 Consumer/Visitor perspective: Behavioural changes and the growth of internet
shopping continues to impact on town centres. The stimulus introduced to support
free car parking has not changed parking behaviours and this is consistent with the
findings of previous research. It is the town centre offer that influences demand.
Parking charges are a low proportion of total annual car operating expenditure for a
motorist.

2.2 Motorist perspective: The two biggest concerns of motorists from the findings
of recent survey work undertaken by the RAC are the cost of fuel which takes up a
greater proportion of the operating cost of a car. Motorists are also more concerned

(1)  NimbleFins — Insurance Analyst — Average Cost of Running a Car UK 270223 Danev — Carplusuk 280922
(2) RAC Motoring Report2022
(3) ONS Retail sales index internet sales

Tudalen 97




about the condition of the highway. Parking charges feature on the bottom quartile of
motorists’ concerns.

2.3 Financial. The existing budget pressures caused by a reduction in income are
being mitigated by reductions in expenditure on car parks and other highways and
transportation related expenditure which impacts on the standard and appeal of car
parks and the town centres. It is also mitigated by an increase in revenue from the
camera enforcement. Both are not sustainable.

The current free parking pilot is not funded.

2.4 Options. There are options for consideration in the report with regards to
changing the free parking offer by offering the first hour free, such an intervention will
require funding as will the current shortfall in budgeted income.

3.0 Recommendations.

3.1 Cabinet is asked to consider the following options:

1. Retain the five free days for events in line with the current policy
and cease the current free parking offer which provides towns
with free parking periods for set hours and days of the week or
provide a budget.

2. Retain the five free days for events in line with the current policy
and cease the current free parking offer which provides towns
with free parking periods for set hours and days of the week or
introduce the one-hour free parking and support with a budget.

3. Retain the five free days for events in line with the current policy,
cease the current free parking offer which provides towns with
free parking periods for set hours and days of the week and allow
the BID teams from key towns to provide a free car parking offer
subject to the bid funding in full the authority’s calculated loss of
revenue.

4. Retain the five free days for events in line with the current policy,
cease the existing free parking offer and provide a set budget
allocation for towns for them to determine their own free parking
periods relative to the budget provided and the authority’s
calculated loss of revenue.

5. Reinstate standard charging to part address the current budget
pressures and remove all free parking offers.

(1)  NimbleFins — Insurance Analyst — Average Cost of Running a Car UK 270223 Danev — Carplusuk 280922
(2) RAC Motoring Report2022
(3) ONS Retail sales index internet sales

Tudalen 98




Eitem Rhif 9

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU
LLE, CYNALIADWYEDD A NEWID YR HINSAWDD

21 GORFFENNAF 2023

EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL

Ystyried y materion canlynol a chyflwyno sylwadau arnynt:

Nodi’'r eitemau ar gyfer y dyfodol i'w hystyried yng nghyfarfod nesaf y Pwyllgor Craffu Lle,
Cynaliadwyedd a Newid yr Hinsawdd i'w gynnal ar 3 Hydref, 2023.

Rhesymau:

Mae’n ofynnol yn 6l Cyfansoddiad y Cyngor bod Pwyllgorau Craffu, ar dechrau bob blwyddyn y
cyngor, yn datblygu ac yn cyhoeddi Blaenraglen Gwaith sy’n nodi’r pynciau a’r adroddiadau sydd
i'w hystyried yn ystod y blwyddyn.

Angen cyfeirio’r mater at y Cabinet er mwyn gwneud penderfyniad: NAC OES

Yr Aelod Cabinet sy’n gyfrifol am y Portffolio:
Cyng. Aled Vaughan Owen (Newid Hinsawdd, Datgarboneiddio a Chynaliadwyedd
Cyng. Edward Thomas (Wasanaethau Trafnidiaeth, Gwastraff a Seilwaith)

Awdur yr Adroddiad: Swydd: Rhifau Ffon / Cyfeiriad E-Bost:
Janine Owen Swyddog Gwasanaethau 01267 224030
Democrataidd JanineOwen@sirgar.gov.uk

PN
Cyngor Sir Gé’
Carmarthenshire Tudalen 99
County Council




PLACE, SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE CHANGE
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

21ST JULY 2023

FORTHCOMING ITEMS

The Council’'s Constitution requires Scrutiny Committees, at the commencement of each municipal
year, to develop and publish a Forward Work Plan which identifies the issues and reports to be
considered at meetings during the course of the year. When formulating the Forward Work
Programme the Scrutiny Committee took into consideration those items included on the Cabinet’s
Forward Work Plan.

The list of forthcoming items attached includes those items which are scheduled in the Place,
Sustainability and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee’s Forward Work Plan to be considered at
the next meeting, to be held on 3 October, 2023.

Scrutiny Committee members, as part of their role are required to regularly refer to the Cabinet
Forward Plan in order to identify any future pre-decision reports, within the scrutiny remit for
inclusion onto the Committee's FWP.

Council/Cabinet Forward Plan can be viewed by clicking HERE

REPORT ATTACHED? YES:
e List of Forthcoming Items;

P
Cyngor Sir Gé’

Carmarthenshire
County Council

Tudalen 100



https://democratiaeth.sirgar.llyw.cymru/mgListPlanItems.aspx?PlanId=28&RP=131&LLL=1

IMPLICATIONS

I confirm that other than those implications which have been agreed with the appropriate Directors /
Heads of Service and are referred to in detail below, there are no other implications associated with
this report.

Signed: Linda Rees-Jones Head of Administration & Law

Policy, Crime Legal Finance ICT Risk Staffing Physical Assets
& Disorder Management | Implications

and Equalities Issues

NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE NONE
CABINET MEMBER PORTFOLIO HOLDER YES

AWARE / CONSULTED

Section 100D Local Government Act, 1972 — Access to Information
List of Background Papers used in the preparation of this report:

Title of Document | Locations that the papers are available for public inspection

Cabinet Forward | https://democratiaeth.sirgar.llyw.cymru/mgListPlanltems.aspx?Planld=17&RP=1
Plan 31

P
Cyngor Sir Gé’

Carmarthenshire
County Council

Tudalen 101




Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn fwriadol



FORTHCOMING ITEMS
for next meeting to be held on 3 October 2023

In order to ensure effective Scrutiny, Members need to be clear as to the purpose of requesting specific

information and the outcome they are hoping to achieve as a consequence of examining a report.

Proposed
Agenda Iltem

Background

Reason for report

Cabinet Member

A Strategic Plan
for Managing our
Land for
Pollinators in
Carmarthenshire

This report will provided information
on pollinator-friendly land
management practices on Council-
managed land where there is no
conflict between these and the
existing land use, and as agreed with
clients (e.g. Housing) and the
contractor (Grounds Maintenance).
Ensuring that the way the Council
manages grassland is consistent with
the climate and nature emergencies.

Pre-decision report

Scrutiny Members requested
that this item be included onto
the Committee’s Forward Work
Plan.

To provide the Committee with
an opportunity to scrutinise the
report.

Clir Aled
Vaughan Owen

Waste Strategy The report provides an overview of | Pre-decision report Clir Edward
Update the first phase implementation of | Scrutiny Members requested Thomas

Carmarthenshire’s Waste Strategy | that this item be included onto

2021-2025, providing detail on the | the Committee’s Forward Work

changes that have been | Plan.

implemented, recycling performance | To provide the Committee with

and strategy progress to date. an opportunity to scrutinise the

report.

Bulky Waste This report will propose a cost | Pre-decision report Clir Edward
Review effective, efficient bulky service for | Scrutiny Members requested Thomas

residents that will incorporate the | that this item be included onto

waste hierarchy to ensure that more | the Committee’s Forward Work

bulky waste can be reuse ahead of | Plan.

recycling and disposal. A review of | To provide the Committee with

the cost, number of bulks collected | an opportunity to scrutinise the

per item size, appointment | report.

management system and collection

vehicle requirements for such a

service.

P N
Cyngor Sir Ga’ Tudalen 103

Carmarthenshire
County Council




Items to be circulated under a separate cover to Scrutiny Committee members
(as agreed at the Committee’s Forward Work Programme development session on 13" June 2023)

Proposed Agenda | Background Reason for report Cabinet Member
Item

Shoreline As a member of the Swansea and Pre-decision report Clir Aled
Management Carmarthen Bay Coastal Scrutiny Members requested Vaughan Owen

Plan-2; an update
on its Delivery

Engineering Group and a coastal
risk management authority,
Carmarthenshire have a duty to
deliver actions within the SMP2. This
report highlights CCC actions, the
action owners and our progress and
approach being taken to manage our
coastline.

that this item be included onto
the Committee’s Forward Work
Plan.

To provide the Committee with
an opportunity to scrutinise the
report.

Budget
Monitoring Report
(April to June
2023).

This report covers the revenue and
capital budgets for the Environment
Department, Public Protection
Services and Community Safety
which fall within the remit of the
Place, Sustainability and Climate
Change Scrutiny Committee

To enable members to
exercise their scrutiny role.

Clir Alun Lenny

P N

Cyngor Sir Gé’

Carmarthenshire
County Council

Tudalen 104




Eitem Rhif 10

PWYLLGOR CRAFFU
LLE, CYNALIADWYEDD A NEWID HINSAWDD

15 MAI 2023
PRESENNOL Cynghorydd J.D. James (Cadeirydd) (Yn y Siambr)

Cynghorwyr (Yn y Siambr):
K. Davies P. Cooper T.A.J. Davies  B.D.J. Phillips S. Godfrey-Coles

Cynghorwyr (Yn rhithwir):
S.M. Allen T.M. Higgins G.R. Jones G.B. Thomas
Y Cynghorydd A. Evans — yn lle’'r Cynghorydd N. Lewis.

Hefyd yn bresennol (Yny Siambr):

Cynghorydd A. Vaughan Owen, Yr Aelod Cabinet dros Newid Hinsawdd,
Datgarboneiddio a Chynaliadwyedd;

Cynghorydd E. Thomas, Yr Aelod Cabinet dros Transport, Gwasanaethau Trafnidiaeth,

Hefyd yn bresennol (Yn y Siambr):

A. Williams, Pennaeth y Gwasanaethau Amgylcheddol a Gwastraff;
D.W. John, Pennaeth Gwastraff Dros Dro;

S. Gallagher, Rheolwr Gyfarwyddwr, Cwm Environmental Ltd;

R. Morris, Swyddog Cefnogi Aelodau;

S. Rees, Cyfieithydd ArY Pryd;

J. Owen, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd.

Hefyd yn bresennol (Yn rhithwyr):

M. Runeckles, Swyddog Cefnogi Aeolodau;

K. Evans, Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd Cynorthwyol (Sylwedydd).

Siambr, Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin, SA31 1JP ac o bell: 2:00yb - 3:18yp

1. YMDDIHEURIADAU AM ABSENOLDEB
Derbyniwyd ymddiheuriad am absenoldeb gan y Cynghorydd N. Lewis.

2. DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANNAU PERSONOL GAN GYNNWYS UNRHYW
CHWIPIAU PLEIDIAU A RODDIR MEWN YMATEB | UNRHYW EITEM AR YR
AGENDA.

Ni chafwyd dim datganiadau o fuddiant.
Ni chafwyd dim datganiadau ynghylch unrhyw chwip waharddedig.

3. CWESTIYNAU GAN Y CYHOEDD

Dywedodd y Cadeirydd nad oedd dim cwestiynau wedi dod i law gan y cyhoedd.

P N
Cyngor Sir Gar

Carmarthenshire
County Council

Tudalen 105



CAMAU GWEITHREDU'R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU - LLE, CYNALIADWYEDD A
NEWID HINSAWDD - 2022/23

Cafodd y Pwyllgor y camau gweithredu oedd yn deillio o'r Pwyllgor Craffu — Lle,
Cynaliadwyedd a Newid Hinsawdd o'i waith yn ystod 2022/23 a bu'n ystyried y

cynnydd a wnaed mewn perthynas & chamau gweithredu, gofynion neu
atgyfeiriadau a gofnodwyd yn ystod cyfarfodydd blaenorol y Pwyligor.

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL y dylid derbyn Adroddiad Camau
Gweithredu’r Pwyllgor Craffu - Lle, Cynaliadwyedd a Newid Hinsawdd ar
gyfer 2022/23.

CYNLLUN RHEOLI STRATEGOL GLANHAU STRYDOEDD 2023

Cafodd y Pwyllgor adroddiad, a gyflwynwyd gan yr Aelod Cabinet dros
Wasanaethau Trafnidiaeth, Gwastraff a Seilwaith, a oedd yn darparu gwybodaeth
allweddol mewn perthynas & Chynllun Rheoli Strategol Glanhau Strydoedd
2023. Roedd yr adroddiad yn cyflwyno'r ffordd y byddai'r Cyngor yn adolygu ac
yn gwella ei ddarpariaeth gwasanaethau glanhau wrth fodloni gofynion
deddfwriaethol Deddf Diogelu'r Amgylchedd 1990. Byddai'r Cynllun yn llunio
dyfodol y gwasanaeth i gyflawni anghenion y Cynllun Rheoli Ansawdd
Amgylcheddol Lleol a'r dyletswyddau a gyflawnir gan yr Awdurdod drwy God
Ymarfer ar Sbwriel a Gwastraff a Chanllawiau Cysylltiedig 2007.

Holwyd ynghylch y canlynol mewn perthynas a'r adroddiad:-

e Cyfeiriwyd at baragraff 1.19 o'r adroddiad a oedd yn nodi mai'r Dangosydd
Glendid Cymru Gyfan ar gyfer 2022-23 yw 68.8 ac, ar hyn o bryd, fod gan
Sir Gaerfyrddin sgér o 67.4 sy'n ein gosod yn y 14eg safle yng Nghymru.
Mewn ymateb i ymholiad, dywedodd yr Aelod Cabinet fod hyder y byddai'r
Gwasanaeth Glanhau newydd, ynghyd & chydweithio, yn gwella'r
Dangosydd Glendid Cymru Gyfan ymhellach yn y dyfodol.

¢ Nodwyd bod cynghorwyr yn derbyn llawer o negeseuon e-bost gan drigolion
yn rhoi gwybod am finiau llawn y mae angen eu gwagio. Cydnabuwyd bod
timau casglu sbwriel lleol yn ymdrin &'r rhain yn aml, ac felly dywedwyd nad
yw'r mater hwn yn cael ei riportio'n aml gan nad yw wedi mynd drwy sianel
riportio y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd. Dywedodd y Pennaeth Gwastraff
Dros Dro, fel rhan o'r arbedion effeithlonrwydd, y byddai biniau sbwriel yn
cael eu lleihau 20% ar draws y sir ac anogodd yr aelodau i gyfrannu at y
broses fonitro. Mewn ymateb i ymholiad, dywedodd y Pennaeth Gwastraff
Dros Dro y byddai'r aelod ward priodol yn cael gwybod am y biniau sbwriel a
nodir ar gyfer eu gwaredu ledled y sir, ynghyd &'r rhesymeg.

e Codwyd ymholiad ynghylch addysgu'r cyhoedd mewn perthynas a'r
strategaeth. Eglurodd y Pennaeth Gwastraff Dros Dro, ar wahan i'r Cynllun
Rheoli Strategol Glanhau Strydoedd, fod rhaglen addysg ac ymwybyddiaeth
gadarn a nodwyd yn y Cynllun Amgylchedd o Safon Lleol. Yn ogystal, roedd
gwaith allweddol yn cael ei wneud ochr yn ochr ag awdurdodau lleol eraill
mewn perthynas & datblygu dull Cymru gyfan fel rhan o brosiect Caru
Cymru.

P N
Cyngor Sir Gar

Carmarthenshire
County Council

Tudalen 106



e Mewn ymateb i ymholiad ynghylch codi ymwybyddiaeth ac addysg drwy
fynychu sioeau/ffeiriau/digwyddiadau, eglurodd y Pennaeth Gwastraff Dros
Dro nad oedd modd mynychu pob sioe/ffair/digwyddiad, fodd bynnag,
byddai rhestr o'r digwyddiadau y bwriedir bod yn bresennol ynddynt yn cael
ei rhannu a'r aelodau a byddai ystyriaeth yn cael ei rhoi i ddatblygu proses
lle gallai Aelodau ofyn am bresenoldeb mewn sioeau/ffeiriau/digwyddiadau
lleol pe bai adnoddau'n caniatau hynny.

e Dywedwyd y byddai Aelodau yn bresennol yn Eisteddfod yr Urdd i addysgu
plant am leihau gwastraff ac ailgylchu.

e Gofynnwyd am eglurder mewn perthynas a'r strategaeth i wella ar y cam
presennol ar raddfa Dangosydd Glendid Cymru Gyfan ac, wrth ymdrechu i
wella, roedd yn cynnwys cynnydd mewn lefelau staffio ac, os felly, a fyddai'r
ddibyniaeth ar staff asiantaeth yn lleihau a chostau yn cael eu gwrthbwyso?
Dywedodd y Pennaeth Gwastraff Dros Dro, fel rhan o'r strategaeth, y byddai
staff yn cael eu cyflogi a byddai'r ddibyniaeth ar staff asiantaeth yn lleihau a
fyddai'n digwydd dros y tri mis nesaf.

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL fod yr Adroddiad ar Gynllun Rheoli
Strategol Glanhau Strydoedd 2023 yn cael ei dderbyn.

Ar yr adeg hon, anerchodd y Cynghorydd John James y Pwyligor i hysbysu'r
Aelodau mai'r cyfarfod hwn oedd ei gyfarfod olaf fel Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Craffu.
Ar 6l bod yn Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Craffu Diogelu'r Cyhoedd a'r Amgylchedd
gynt, a newidiodd i'r Pwyllgor Craffu Lle, Cynaliadwyedd a Newid Hinsawdd yn
fwy diweddar, dros y chwe blynedd diwethaf, estynnodd y Cynghorydd James ei
werthfawrogiad i holl Aelodau'r Pwyllgor Craffu nawr ac yn y gorffennol, yr is-
gadeiryddion, Aelodau'r Cabinet a’r swyddogion am eu gwaith caled, eu
cefnogaeth a'u hymroddiad.

Estynnodd Aelodau'r Cabinet, Aelodau'r Pwyllgor a’r swyddogion eu
diolchgarwch a'u gwerthfawrogiad diffuant i'r Cynghorydd John James am ei
flynyddoedd amhrisiadwy o wasanaeth. Roedd ymroddiad, angerdd ac arweiniad
y Cynghorydd James i'r Pwyllgor wedi bod yn allweddol wrth yrru'r Pwyligor yn ei
flaen er budd y cymunedau yn Sir Gaerfyrddin.

LLOFNODI YN GOFNOD CYWIR COFNODION Y CYFARFOD A GYNALIWYD
AR 14 EBRILL 2023

PENDERFYNWYD bod cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyligor a gynhaliwyd ar
14 Ebrill 2023 yn cael eu llofnodi yn gofnod cywir.

GORCHYMYN I'R CYHOEDD ADAEL Y CYFARFOD

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL, yn unol & Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972,
fel y'i newidiwyd gan Orchymyn Llywodraeth Leol (Mynediad at Wybodaeth)
(Amrywio) (Cymru) 2007, orchymyn i'r cyhoedd adael y cyfarfod tra oedd yr
eitemau canlynol yn cael eu hystyried, gan fod yr adroddiadau'n cynnwys
gwybodaeth eithriedig fel y'i diffiniwyd ym mharagraff 14 o Ran 4 o Atodlen
12A i'r Ddeddf.

P N
Cyngor Sir Gar

Carmarthenshire
County Council

Tudalen 107



CYNLLUN BUSNES AC ADRODDIAD CYNNYDD HANNER BLWYDDYN CWM
ENVIRONMENTAL LTD 2022-2023

Yn dilyn cynnal prawf budd y cyhoedd, PENDERFYNWYD yn unol a'r
Ddeddf y cyfeiriwyd ati yng nghofnod 7 uchod, beidio & chyhoeddi
cynnwys yr adroddiad gan ei fod yn cynnwys gwybodaeth eithriedig am
faterion ariannol neu faterion busnes unigolyn penodol (gan gynnwys yr
Awdurdod oedd yn meddu ar y wybodaeth honno) (Paragraff 14 o Ran 4 o
Atodlen 12A i'r Ddeddf). Roedd prawf budd y cyhoedd mewn perthynas a'r
adroddiad hwn yn drech na'r budd i'r cyhoedd o ran cynnal cyfrinachedd er
mwyn cynnal buddiannau a sefyllfa'r cwmni mewn trafodaethau
masnachol/busnes.

Cafodd y Pwyllgor Gynllun Busnes 2022-23 Cwm Environmental Ltd a'r
adroddiad cynnydd hanner blwyddyn, a gyflwynwyd gan Reolwr Gyfarwyddwr
Cwm Environmental Ltd.

Nododd yr Aelodau fod cynllun busnes tair blynedd Cwm Environmental Ltd
2022-23 i 2024-25 wedi'i lunio i nodi amcanion strategol y cwmni, ei amcanion
darparu gwasanaeth, y risgiau masnachol y mae'n eu hwynebu, ynghyd &'i
berfformiad ariannol disgwyliedig. Roedd y Cynllun hefyd yn sicrhau bod
strategaeth Cwm yn cyd-fynd ag agenda gwastraff ac amcanion ehangach Sir
Gaerfyrddin, ac yn eu cyflawni.

Roedd yr adroddiad cynnydd yn rhoi diweddariad canol blwyddyn ar berfformiad
a chamau gweithredu mewn perthynas a'r cynllun busnes ar gyfer blwyddyn
ariannol 2022-23.

Codwyd nifer o ymholiadau mewn perthynas &'r adroddiad ac ymatebodd
Rheolwr Gyfarwyddwr Cwm Environmental Ltd iddynt gyda chymorth
swyddogion.

Codwyd ymholiadau mewn perthynas &'r canlynol:

e costau ariannol;

e compost a'i strategaeth brisio;

e cerbydau trydan yn rhaglen adnewyddu'r fflyd 2025-2030 — materion a
chostau cysylltiedig;

e economi gylchol;

e Y Gweithdy Atgyweirio a'r Siop Ailddefnyddio (ETO).

PENDERFYNWYD YN UNFRYDOL fod y Cynllun Busnes ac Adroddiad
Cynnydd Hanner Blwyddyn Cwm Environmental Ltd 2022-2023 yn cael ei
dderbyn.

CADEIRYDD DYDDIAD

P N
Cyngor Sir Gar

Carmarthenshire
County Council

Tudalen 108



	Agenda
	4 ADRODDIAD BLYNYDDOL Y PWYLLGOR CRAFFU LLE, CYNALIADWYEDD A NEWID YR HINSAWDD 2022/23
	Adroddiad Blynyddol
	1.	Introduction
	2.	Overview of the work of the Committee in 2022/23
	2.1	Management of Meetings
	2.2	The Role of the Cabinet Member
	2.3	The Forward Work Plan
	2.4	The Gateway Framework and reports circulated under a separate cover (e-mail)
	2.5	Performance Monitoring
	2.6	Revenue and Capital Budgets
	2.7	Pre-Decision Scrutiny Reports
	2.7.1	Public Space Protection Order (Enhancement on dog related controls) – 	November 2022
	2.7.2	Waste Strategy Update –December 2022
	2.7.3	Highways Asset Management Plan (HAMP) Maintenance Manual –  January 2023,
	2.7.4	Roundabout Sponsorship Scheme – April 2023
	2.7.5	Street Cleansing Strategic Management Plan 2023 – May 2023
	2.8	Additional Reports and Update Reports
	2.8.1	Air Quality Update – November 2022
	2.8.2	Highway Drainage Design Guide for New Developments – November 2022 – 	Scrutiny by E-mail
	2.8.3	Graffiti Policy – December 2022 – Scrutiny by E-mail
	2.8.4	Carmarthenshire County Council - Electric Vehicle Charging Infrastructure Strategy– December 2022
	2.8.5	Carmarthenshire Sandbag Policy 2022 –January 2023 – Scrutiny by E-mail
	2.8.6	Phosphate Levels in protected Riverine Special Areas of Conservation – 	Update – February 2023
	At the request of the Committee, a report was presented by the Cabinet member for Rural Affairs & Planning Policy regarding the progress and work undertaken in responding to the impacts of phosphate pollution in protected Special Areas of Conservation.
	2.8.7	Carmarthenshire Equestrian Strategy Update –January 2023
	2.8.8	WG Speed Limit Changes in Legislation (20MPH) –January 2023
	2.8.9	A Tree and Woodland Strategy for Carmarthenshire County Council  	2023-2028 – February 2023
	2.8.10 Cwm Environmental Ltd 2022-23 Business Plan and  	Half Year Progress Report –May 2023
	2.9	Referrals
	2.10	Public Engagement and Scrutiny Topic Suggestions

	3.	Scrutiny Committee Activity
	3.1	Scrutiny Investigations (Task and Finish)
	3.2	Member Development and Site Visits

	4.	Challenges
	5.	Committee’s Future Work
	6.	Support for the Scrutiny Function
	7.	Committee Member Attendance


	5 BLAENRAGLEN WAITH AR GYFER 2023/24
	BLAENRAGLEN WAITH AR GYFER 2023-24 DRAFFT

	6 ADRODDIAD TERFYNOL GRWP GORCHWYL A GORFFEN ADOLYGIAD O REOLI TIPIO ANGHYFREITHLON YN SIR GAERFYRDDIN
	Adroddiad

	7 DIWEDDARIAD AR GYFER YSTYRIED GORCHYMYN DIOGELU MANNAU AGORED CYHOEDDUS YCHWANEGOL AR GYFER GORCHMYNION CWN SIR GAERFYRDDIN
	8 ADOLYGIAD O BARCIO AM DDIM
	Adroddiad

	9 EITEMAU AR GYFER Y DYFODOL
	Adroddiad

	10 LLOFNODI YN GONOD CYWIR COFNODION Y CYFARFOD A GYNHALIWYD AR 15 MAI 2023

